
 

 

 

 

AGENDA 

CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION 
Thursday, July 17, 2014 – 7:00 PM 

 Chairperson Gayle Oritz 

 Commissioners Ron Graves 

  Mick Routh 

  Linda Smith 

  TJ Welch 

 
1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda 
 

B. Public Comments 
Short communications from the public concerning matters not on the Agenda.  
All speakers are requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so that their 
name may be accurately recorded in the Minutes. 

 
C. Commission Comments 

 
D. Staff Comments 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. Approval of June 5, 2014 Planning Commission draft minutes 

 
4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under “Consent Calendar” are considered by the Planning Commission to be routine and 
will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below.  There will be no separate discussion on these 
items prior to the time the Planning Commission votes on the action unless members of the public or the 
Planning Commission request specific items to be discussed for separate review.  Items pulled for 
separate discussion will be considered in the order listed on the Agenda. 

 
A. 528 Capitola Avenue      #14-094      APN: 035-094-29 

Sign Permit for a new wall sign to be located at the Dignity Health Medical Group 
located at 528 Capitola Avenue on a parcel that is located within two zoning districts 
including CN (Commercial Neighborhood) and R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning 
District.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone, but does not require a Coastal Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Harold LaFont 
Representative: Bob Deschamps (Pro Signs Inc.), filed: 6/17/14 

 
 
 
 
 
 



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA – Thursday, July 17, 2014  2 
  

 

B. 2000 Wharf Road and Parcel Adjacent to 809 Bay Avenue      #14-096       
APNs: 035-021-42; 035-371-01; and 035-371-02 
Coastal Development Permit application and Tree Removal Permit for the Soquel Pump 
Station Force Main Replacement project. The project runs on either side of and under 
Soquel Creek from property adjacent to Peery Park through the Rispin property to 
Clares Street.   
This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit, which is 
appealable to the California Coastal Commission after all possible appeals are 
exhausted through the City. 
Environmental Determination: Mitigated Negative Declaration 
Applicant: Santa Cruz County Sanitation District 
Property Owners: Santa Cruz County Sanitation District and City of Capitola 
Representative: Rachel Lather, filed: 06/17/14 

 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Public Hearings are intended to provide an opportunity for public discussion of each item listed as a Public 
Hearing.  The following procedure is as follows:  1) Staff Presentation; 2) Public Discussion; 3) Planning 
Commission Comments; 4) Close public portion of the Hearing; 5) Planning Commission Discussion; and 
6) Decision. 

 
A. 1440 41st Avenue      #14-075      APN: 0034-111-50 

Amendment to Master Sign Program (Four Starr Center) to allow an additional Verizon 
sign on the building located at 1440 41st Avenue in the CC (Community Commercial) 
zoning district.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone, but does not require a Coastal Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Richard Starr 
Representative: Chris Merrell (Northwest Signs), filed: 5/20/14 

 
B. 1649 41st Avenue      #14-076      APN: 304-151-09 

Sign Permit for new monument sign with LED lettering at the Shell Gas Station, located 
in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District.  
This project is not in the Coastal Zone and does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Peninsula Petroleum LLC 
Representative: Hillary McClurg, filed 5/21/14 

 
6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
 

7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Adjourn to the next Planning Commission on Thursday, August 7, 2014 at 7:00 PM, in the City 
Hall Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA – Thursday, July 17, 2014  3 
  

 

 

 

 

APPEALS:  The following decisions of the Planning Commission can be appealed to the City Council within the 
(10) calendar days following the date of the Commission action:  Conditional Use Permit, Variance, and Coastal 
Permit.  The decision of the Planning Commission pertaining to an Architectural and Site Review can be appealed 
to the City Council within the (10) working days following the date of the Commission action.  If the tenth day falls 
on a weekend or holiday, the appeal period is extended to the next business day. 
 

All appeals must be in writing, setting forth the nature of the action and the basis upon which the action is 
considered to be in error, and addressed to the City Council in care of the City Clerk.  An appeal must be 
accompanied by a one hundred forty two dollar ($142.00) filing fee, unless the item involves a Coastal Permit that 
is appealable to the Coastal Commission, in which case there is no fee.  If you challenge a decision of the 
Planning Commission in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the 
public hearing described in this agenda, or in written correspondence delivered to the City at, or prior to, the 
public hearing. 
 

Notice regarding Planning Commission meetings:  The Planning Commission meets regularly on the 1
st
 

Thursday of each month at 7:00 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola. 
 

Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials:  The Planning Commission Agenda and complete Agenda Packet are 
available on the Internet at the City's website:  www.cityofcapitola.org.  Agendas are also available at the Capitola 
Branch Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, on the Monday prior to the Thursday meeting.  Need more 
information?  Contact the Community Development Department at (831) 475-7300. 
 

Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet:  Materials that are a public record 
under Government Code § 54957.5(A) and that relate to an agenda item of a regular meeting of the Planning 
Commission that are distributed to a majority of all the members of the Planning Commission more than 72 hours 
prior to that meeting shall be available for public inspection at City Hall located at 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
during normal business hours. 
 

Americans with Disabilities Act:  Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons with a 
disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  
Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting in the City Council 
Chambers.  Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting due to a disability, please 
contact the Community Development Department at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting at (831) 475-7300.  
In an effort to accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are requested to refrain from 
wearing perfumes and other scented products. 
 

Televised Meetings:  Planning Commission meetings are cablecast "Live" on Charter Communications Cable TV 
Channel 8 and are recorded to be replayed on the following Monday and Friday at 1:00 p.m. on Charter Channel 
71 and Comcast Channel 25.  Meetings can also be viewed from the City's website:  www.cityofcapitola.org. 
 

 

 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



  
 
 
Vice Chairperson Smith called the Regular Meeting of the Capitola Planning Commission to order  
at 7 p.m.     
 
1.   ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioners:  Ron Graves, Mick Routh, Linda Smith and TJ Welch  
Absent: Gayle Ortiz 
  

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda -  none 
 

B. Public Comment  - none 
 

C. Commission Comment  - none 
 
D. Staff Comments - none 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. May 1, 2014, Draft Planning Commission Minutes 
 
A motion to approve the May 1, 2014, meeting minutes was made by Commissioner Welch and 
seconded by Commissioner Graves.   
 
The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Graves, Routh, Smith and 
Welch. No: None. Abstain: None 
 
4. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

A. 138 Cabrillo St.       #14-071      APN: 036-182-08   
Fence Permit application with request for an exception to the required 5-foot setback 
for a 30-inch-tall fence on a corner lot located in the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) 
Zoning District.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Austin Sherwood 
Representative: Chris Chambers, filed: 5/9/14 

 
A motion to approve project application #14-071 for a fence setback exception with the 
following conditions and findings was made by Commissioner Welch and seconded by 
Commissioner Routh: 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

THURSDAY, JUNE 5, 2014 
7 P.M. – CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
 

-1-

Item #: 3.A. 6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – June 5, 2014  2 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

CONDITIONS  
1. The project approval consists of construction of a 30 inch high fence. The proposed project is 

approved as indicated on the final plans reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on 
April 3, 2014, except as modified through conditions imposed by the Planning Commission during 
the hearing. 

 
2. Prior to construction, a fence permit shall be secured for the construction of a fence authorized by 

this permit. Final fence permit plans shall be consistent with the plans approved by the Planning 
Commission.  All construction and site improvements shall be completed according to the 
approved plans 

 
3. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be printed in full on 

the cover sheet of the construction plans.  
 

4. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically requested and 
submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any significant changes shall 
require Planning Commission approval.   

 
5. Prior to issuance of fence permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #14-071 shall be paid in 

full. 
 

6. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise curfew, 
except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  Construction noise shall 
be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty a.m. on weekdays. Construction 
noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the exception of Saturday work between nine a.m. and 
four p.m. or emergency work approved by the building official. §9.12.010B 

 
7. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance.   The applicant shall have an 

approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent permit expiration.   
Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to expiration pursuant to 
Municipal Code section 17.81.160. 

 
8. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the underlying 

property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the applicant to others 
without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the site on which the approval 
was granted. 

 
FINDINGS 
A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
 Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and 

the Planning Commission have all reviewed the project.  The project secures the purposes of 
the R-1 (Single Family Residence) Zoning District.  A setback exception for a front yard fence 
has been granted by the Planning Commission to carry out the objectives of the Zoning 
Ordinance, General Plan and Local Coastal Plan. 

 
B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
 Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and 

the Planning Commission have all reviewed the project.  The project is located in the R-
1(Single Family Residential) zoning district, just north of the Cabrillo Street and Sir Francis 
Avenue intersection. The project received a setback exception to the corner lot fence setback 
standard to maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. The proposed fence 
compliments the existing mix of fences in the neighborhood.   

-2-

Item #: 3.A. 6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – June 5, 2014  3 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

 
C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California 

Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 This project involves construction of a new fence in the R-1 zoning district.  Section 15303 of 
the CEQA Guidelines exempts the construction of a fence in a residential zone. 

 
The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Graves, Routh, Smith and 
Welch. No: None. Abstain: None 
 

B. 116 Stockton Ave.      #14-074      APN: 035-23-113 
Conditional Use Permit for a new market with prepared food (Restaurant) and Sale of 
Alcohol (beer and wine) at 116 Stockton Avenue in the CV (Central Village) Zoning 
District. 
This project is located in the Coastal Zone but is exempt from a Coastal Development 
Permit.  
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Rickey Felder 
Representative: Sholeh K. Westfall, filed 5/20/2014 

 
Attorney Ed Newman requested that this item be pulled from the Consent Agenda. It was 
heard as a public hearing immediately following.  
 
Senior Planner Katie Cattan presented the staff report. She noted the applicant prepared a 
management plan for the type 41 liquor license and the conditions include specific items 
requested by the police chief related to this license. She presented amendments to conditions 
21 and 22 that would allow a single beer or wine cooler to be sold for consumption onsite. 
 
Applicant Sholeh Westfall assured the Commission that the sale of alcohol would be properly 
monitored, and reiterated her business plan. Commissioner Routh asked where food would be 
prepared offsite. She responded she is speaking with two facilities in downtown Santa Cruz 
currently, but she is seeking a closer location. Commissioner Routh expressed concern about 
take-out alcohol since it is not permitted on the beach.  
 
Commissioner Smith confirmed the type of foods prepared. Ms. Westfall explained there 
would be some assembly of foods and sale of marinated meat to be grilled at another location. 
Her vision is a specialty food market. 
 
Vice Chairperson Smith opened the public hearing. Mr. Newman expressed concern about 
sales of beer and wine to go that may end up on the beach or concerts. He noted there is no 
commercial parking onsite in a highly congested spot. 
 
There was no other public comment and the public hearing was closed. 
 
Commissioner Routh asked for clarification of the restaurant designation. Staff responded that 
preparation of food triggers the restaurant definition, which was deemed to have more 
potential development impact than the market. 
 
Commissioner Graves noted the site’s most recent use as a wine bar with limited seats and 
asked why this was not an intensification of use. Planner Cattan clarified that code lists retail 
use or restaurant with 6 seats as comparable intensities.  
 

-3-

Item #: 3.A. 6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – June 5, 2014  4 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

Community Development Director Rich Grunow explained that intensification focuses on use 
classifications within the zoning code, rather than differentiation by specific use types, which is 
very difficult to quantify. 
 
Commissioners discussed the specialty market use with the applicant and acknowledged the 
difficulty of defining primary use. 

 
A motion to approve project application #14-074 for a Conditional Use Permit with the 
following conditions and findings was made by Commissioner Welch and seconded by 
Commissioner Routh: 
 
CONDITIONS 
1.  The project approval consists of a Conditional Use Permit to allow a market/restaurant with the 

sale of beer and wine within the existing commercial space located at 116 Stockton Avenue.  No 
modifications to the exterior of the building are proposed.      

 
2.  Seating is limited to a maximum of 6 seats. 

 
3.  A copy of the approved Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control Permit must be filed with the 

Community Development Department prior to initiating beer and wine sales.  
 

4.  The applicant shall receive permission from ABC prior to selling beer and wine.  The conditional 
use permit will expire in the case where the conditional use permit has not been used within two 
years after the date of granting thereof.  Any interruption or cessation beyond the control of the 
property owner shall not result in the termination of such right or privilege. A permit shall be 
deemed to have been “used” when actual substantial, continuous activity has taken place upon 
the land pursuant to the permit. 

 
5.  Sales and service of alcoholic beverages shall be permitted only between the hours of 7:00 a.m. 

and 7:00 p.m. seven days a week. 
 

6.  The sale of distilled spirits is prohibited. 
 

7.  There be no amplified audible entertainment inside the business that can be audible outside to the 
attached curb line in front of the business.  

 
8.  There shall be no live entertainment of any type, including but not limited to live music, disc 

jockey, karaoke, topless entertainment, male or female performers or fashion shows. 
 
9.  No dancing on the premises. 
 
10. The applicant is required to complete and follow the Responsible Beverage Service (RBS) 

practices and procedures. Employees who serve alcoholic beverages are required to attend and 
complete L.E.A.D.S. training offered by the Capitola Police Department. 

 
11. The establishment must maintain a valid license from the Alcohol Beverage Control. 
 
12. The applicant is responsible for maintaining the area directly in front of the business free from litter 

and/or graffiti. 
 
13. Loitering will not be allowed on or in front of the premise. 
 

-4-

Item #: 3.A. 6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – June 5, 2014  5 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

14. A six month review of conditions shall be conducted. Additional conditions will be added as 
needed. 

 
15. No happy hour type of reduced price alcoholic beverage promotion shall be allowed. 
 
16. At all times when the premises are open for business the sale of alcoholic beverages shall be 

made only in conjunction with the sale of food to the person ordering the beverage. 
 
17. Sales, delivery and consumption of alcoholic beverages will be restricted to and within the 

confines of the building portion of the premises and sales or delivery of alcoholic beverages 
through any pass-out window is prohibited. 

 
18. The quarterly gross sales of alcoholic beverages shall not exceed the gross sales of food during 

the same period.  The licensee shall at all times maintain records which reflect separately the 
gross sale of food and the gross sales of alcoholic beverages of the licensed business.  Said 
records shall be kept no less frequently than on a quarterly basis and shall be made available to 
the Department on demand. 

 
19. The petitioner(s) shall be responsible for maintaining free of litter the area adjacent to the 

premises over which they have control. 
 

20. Trash shall not be emptied later than 8 pm.  Trash collection times must be consistent with hours 
established for the Village.  

 
21. The sales of beer or malt beverages in quantities of quarts, 22 oz., 32 oz., 40 oz., or similar size 

containers is prohibited. No beer or malt beverages shall be sold in quantities of less than six per 
sale, with the exception of single beverages to be consumed onsite with food. 
 

22. Beer, malt beverages, and wine coolers in containers of 16 oz. or less cannot be sold by single 
containers, but must be sold in manufacturer pre-packaged multi-unit quantities, with the 
exception of single beverages to be consumed onsite with food. 
 

23. The licensee shall keep the property, adjacent to the licensed premises and under the control of 
the licensee(s) clear of newspaper racks, benches, pay telephones, bicycle racks, and any  
other objects which may encourage loitering. 
 

24. The licensee shall not sell and/or offer for sale or display any magazine, video, or other printed 
material which contains pictures depicting: 
•     Acts or simulated acts of sexual intercourse, masturbation, sodomy, bestiality, oral copulation, 
flagellation or any sexual acts which are prohibited by law. 
•     Any person being touched, caressed or fondled on the breast, buttocks, anus or genitals. 
•     Scenes wherein a person displays the vulva or the anus or the genitals. 
•     Scenes wherein artificial devices or inanimate objects are employed to depict, or drawings are 
employed to portray, any other prohibited activities described above. 
 

25. The application shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission upon evidence of non-compliance 
with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions. 

 
FINDINGS 
 
A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the Zoning 

Ordinance and General Plan. 

-5-

Item #: 3.A. 6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – June 5, 2014  6 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

Community Development Department Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the 
application and determined that the business owner may be granted a conditional use permit for a 
market/restaurant with sale of beer and wine within the CV Zoning District. The use meets the 
intent and purpose of the Central Village Zoning District.  Conditions of approval have been 
included to ensure that the use is consistent with the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 

 
B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood.   

Community Development Department Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the 
proposed use and determined that the use complies with the applicable provisions of the Zoning 
Ordinance and maintain the character and integrity of this area of the City. This area of the City is 
a mix of commercial and residential uses.  Conditions of approval have been included to carry out 
these objectives. 

 
C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California Environmental 

Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the California Code of 
Regulations. 
The proposed project involves an new grocery/restaurant with the sale of beer and wine.  No 
adverse environmental impacts were discovered during project review by either the Planning 
Department Staff or the Planning Commission. 

 
The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Routh, Smith, and Welch. No: 
Commissioner Graves. Abstain: None. 
 
5.  PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. 203 Sacramento Avenue      #14-064       APN: 036-125-03  
205 Sacramento Avenue      #14-065       APN: 036-125-15 
 Design Permit Amendment to modify exterior materials for two new single-family 
homes located in the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District.  
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
This application does not require an amendment to the previously issued Coastal 
Development Permits.  
Property Owner of 203 Sacramento: Anna Cierkosz 
Property Owner of 205 Sacramento: Nick Cierkosz  
Representative: Anna Cierkosz, filed 5/2/14 

 
Commissioner Welch recused himself since he owns property in the project vicinity and left the dais. 
Assistant Planner Ryan Safty presented the staff report including the timeline and images for changes 
requested by new owners of the as-yet-unfinished, new single-family homes.  
 
Commissioner Routh thanked the applicant for following proper procedure to make façade changes. 
 
There was no comment for the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Graves asked when construction may be completed if the plans are approved this 
evening. The applicant responded that the families hope to complete work by the end of summer. 
 
A motion to approve project applications #14-064 and #14-065 for Design Permit Amendments 
with the following conditions and findings was made by Commissioner Routh and seconded 
by Commissioner Graves: 
 
CONDITIONS  

-6-

Item #: 3.A. 6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – June 5, 2014  7 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

1.  All previous conditions of approval of Design Permit #12-014 for 203 Sacramento Avenue and 
Design Permit #12-013 for 205 Sacramento Avenue continue to apply. 
 

2.  The applicant shall construct the single-family homes at 203 Sacramento Avenue and 205 
Sacramento Avenue as approved by the Planning Commission on June 5, 2014, including any 
additional exterior modifications deemed necessary by the Planning Commission during the 
meeting.  Prior to Certificate of Occupancy the Community Development Director or his designee 
must find that the buildings reflect the design permit, as amended by the Planning Commission on 
June 5, 2014.    

 
FINDINGS 
A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the Zoning 

Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
 

Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the project. The project conforms to the development 
standards of the R-1 (Single Family Residence) Zoning District. Conditions of approval have 
been included to carry out the objectives of the Zoning Ordinance, General Plan and Local 
Coastal Plan.  

 
B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
 

Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the exterior modifications to the project.  The exterior 
material is similar to other newer residences in the area therefore, the project’s overall design 
will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 

 
C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California      

Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations.  
This project involves the remodel of an existing single-family residence in the R-1 (single 
family residence) Zoning District.  Section 15301 of the CEQA Guidelines exempts alterations 
to existing single-family residences in the residential zone. 
 

The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Graves, Routh, and Smith. No: 
None. Abstain: None.   
 

B. 401/403 Capitola Avenue      #13-082      APN: 035-131-11 
Design Permit, Variance, Sign Permit, and Coastal Development Permit to demolish 
the existing duplex and construct a new two-story commercial building in the CN 
(Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning District and Floodplain District.  
This project requires a Coastal Development Permit which is not appealable to the 
California Coastal Commission.  
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Starley Moore, filed: 6/17/13  
Representative: Derek Van Alstine 

 
Commissioner Graves recused himself since he owns property in the project vicinity and left the dais. 
Senior Planner Cattan presented the staff report. She noted the requested setback variances reflect 
no change to the existing rear setback and an increased setback to existing conditions in the front, 
although not the level required by the zoning ordinance. Additionally, since there is currently no 
parking onsite, the request for a variance for parking does not increase intensity of the existing non-
conformity. She noted that the applicant attempted to lease nearby parking, but was unsuccessful.  

-7-

Item #: 3.A. 6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – June 5, 2014  8 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

 
She also outlined the process and criteria for historic consideration.  
 
Derek Van Alstine spoke on behalf of the applicant. He said that the intended commercial use with 
walking patrons is likely a less intense use than a residential duplex. He also noted the cost of 
rehabilitation is prohibitive due to the building’s dilapidated state. The design reflects the reality of 
neighboring setbacks and uses. He acknowledged the building’s location in front of the trestle sets the 
tone of the entrance to the Village from Capitola Avenue. 
 
Commissioner Smith asked for details of the proposed windows and roof. Mr. Van Alstine said the 
simulated divided lights maintain the aesthetic of the historic era. The roofing material is corrugated 
metal and is correct to the period of the existing building.  
 
Owner Starley Moore confirmed that the design presented is what she desired and intends to build, 
and is aware of the cost of materials. 
 
Vice Chairperson Smith opened the public hearing.  
 
Bob Henry of 402 Riverview, the neighbor behind the proposed building, spoke in support of the 
project. He called the back of the existing building “a joke.” 
 
Dunn Silvey of Fanmar Way said it is a great project, but expressed concern about the impact with no 
onsite parking.  He worries that employees will seek free parking in neighborhoods in spite of the 
City’s new parking lot and would like to encourage the City to consider options such as offsets to 
mitigate those problems.  
 
The public hearing was closed. 
 
Commissioner Routh noted he once rented the home 46 years ago and it was not well maintained 
even then, so does not support historic status. He agreed that the location sets the tone for the Village 
and believes the train depot appearance does not reflect the Village historical style, which to him has 
a more European feel. He would support a continuance for design. 
 
Commissioner Welch does not believe the building meets historic preservation requirements and likes 
the new design. He said the Village has an eclectic style and noted some well-received new projects 
such as the “lighthouse” building are not European/Mediterranean design. He feels this project is 
fitting for the area. 
 
Commissioner Smith spoke to the question of the City’s historic features preservation and 
acknowledged gaps in the current ordinance. She believes Capitola’s citizens do care about 
preserving historic character, but in this case the building structure itself is more historical than 
historic, and therefore does not qualify for additional CEQA review. As a gateway location, the design 
would optimally reflect Capitola or the existing building’s style, but she also believes people have a 
right to build the style they desire as long as it is well done. For this proposal, the quality of the 
construction and materials are paramount. Capitola’s character reflects a lot of different styles and 
although she would have liked a different design, she will not deny it for that reason. 
 
A motion to approve project application #13-082 for a Design Permit, Variance, Sign Permit 
and Coastal Development Permit with the following conditions and findings was made by 
Commissioner Welch and seconded by Commissioner Smith: 
 

-8-

Item #: 3.A. 6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – June 5, 2014  9 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

 
CONDITIONS 

 
1. The project approval consists of construction of a new 1,115 square-foot commercial building.  

The proposed project is approved as indicated on the final plans reviewed and approved by 
the Planning Commission on June 5, 2014, except as modified through conditions imposed by 
the Planning Commission during the hearing. 

 
2. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 

modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be consistent 
with the plans approved by the Planning Commission.  All construction and site improvements 
shall be completed according to the approved plans. 

 
3. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be printed in 

full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  
 

4. At time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail SMP STRM shall 
be printed in full and incorporated as a sheet into the construction plans.  All construction shall 
be done in accordance with the Public Works Standard Detail BMP STRM.   

 
5. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically requested 

and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any significant changes 
to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require Planning Commission 
approval.   
 

6. Prior to issuance of building permit, a final landscape plan shall be submitted and approved by 
the Community Development Department.  Landscape plans shall reflect the Planning 
Commission approval and shall identify type, size, and location of species and details of 
irrigation systems. 

 
7. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #13-082 shall be 

paid in full. 
 

8. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 
approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel Creek 
Water District, and Central Fire Protection District.   

 
9. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion control 

plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works.  The plans shall be in 
compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 13.16 Storm 
Water Pollution Prevention and Protection. 

 
10. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater management 

plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements all applicable Post 
Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard Details, including all standards 
relating to low impact development (LID). 
 

11. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading official to 
verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan.  

 
12. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired by 

the contractor performing the work.  No material or equipment storage may be placed in the 
road right-of-way. 

-9-

Item #: 3.A. 6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – June 5, 2014  10 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

 
13. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise curfew, 

except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  Construction noise 
shall be prohibited between the hours of 9 p.m. and 7:30 a.m. on weekdays. Construction 
noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the exception of Saturday work between 9 a.m. 
and 4 p.m. or emergency work approved by the building official. §9.12.010B 

 
14. Prior to a project final, all cracked or broken driveway approaches, curb, gutter, or sidewalk 

shall be replaced per the Public Works Standard Details and to the satisfaction of the Public 
Works Department.  All replaced driveway approaches, curb, gutter or sidewalk shall meet 
current Accessibility Standards. 

 
15. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of approval shall 

be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director.  Upon evidence 
of non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions, the 
applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director or shall file an application for a permit amendment for Planning Commission 
consideration. Failure to remedy a non-compliance in a timely manner may result in permit 
revocation. 

 
16. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance.   The applicant shall have an 

approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent permit 
expiration.   Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to expiration 
pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160. 

 
17. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 

underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the applicant 
to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the site on which 
the approval was granted. 

 
18. Upon receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be placed out 

of public view on non-collection days.  
 
FINDINGS 

A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 
Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and 
the Planning Commission have all reviewed the plans for the new commercial building.  The 
project conforms to the development standards of the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning 
Districts with the granting of a variance for setbacks and parking.  Conditions of approval have 
been included to carry out the objectives of the Zoning Ordinance, General Plan and Local 
Coastal Plan. 

 
B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 

Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and 
the Planning Commission have all reviewed the application for the new commercial building. 
The Planning Commission has granted a variance for setbacks and height to maintain the 
character and integrity of 400 block of Capitola Avenue within the CN Zoning District.  This 
block is defined by commercial and residential properties with limited parking and setbacks.  
Conditions of approval have been included to ensure that the project maintains the character 
and integrity of the neighborhood. The proposed design compliments the existing streetscape 
in the neighborhood in use, mass and scale, materials, height, and architecture.  The Planning 

-10-

Item #: 3.A. 6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – June 5, 2014  11 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

Commission finds that the existing structure at 401/403 Capitola Avenue is not a local historic 
feature and may be demolished.   

 
C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301(e) of the California 

Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 Section 15303(c) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts the construction of a commercial building 
within an urbanized area under 10,000 sf. This project involves construction of a new 
commercial building within the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning District. No adverse 
environmental impacts were discovered during review of the proposed project. 

 
COASTAL FINDINGS 
 

D. Findings Required. A coastal permit shall be granted only upon adoption of specific 
written factual findings supporting the conclusion that the proposed development 
conforms to the certified Local Coastal Program, including, but not limited to: 
 

• The proposed development conforms to the City’s certified Local Coastal Plan (LCP). 
The specific, factual findings, as per CMC Section 17.46.090 (D) are as follows:  

 
(D) (2) Require Project-Specific Findings. In determining any requirement for public 
access, including the type of access and character of use, the city shall evaluate and 
document in written findings the factors identified in subsections (D) (2) (a) through (e), 
to the extent applicable. The findings shall explain the basis for the conclusions and 
decisions of the city and shall be supported by substantial evidence in the record. If an 
access dedication is required as a condition of approval, the findings shall explain how 
the adverse effects which have been identified will be alleviated or mitigated by the 
dedication. As used in this section, “cumulative effect” means the effect of the 
individual project in combination with the effects of past projects, other current 
projects, and probable future projects, including development allowed under applicable 
planning and zoning. 

 
(D) (2) (a) Project Effects on Demand for Access and Recreation. Identification of 
existing and open public access and coastal recreation areas and facilities in the 
regional and local vicinity of the development. Analysis of the project’s effects upon 
existing public access and recreation opportunities. Analysis of the project’s 
cumulative effects upon the use and capacity of the identified access and recreation 
opportunities, including public tidelands and beach resources, and upon the capacity 
of major coastal roads from subdivision, intensification or cumulative build-out. 
Projection for the anticipated demand and need for increased coastal access and 
recreation opportunities for the public. Analysis of the contribution of the project’s 
cumulative effects to any such projected increase. Description of the physical 
characteristics of the site and its proximity to the sea, tideland viewing points, upland 
recreation areas, and trail linkages to tidelands or recreation areas. Analysis of the 
importance and potential of the site, because of its location or other characteristics, for 
creating, preserving or enhancing public access to tidelands or public recreation 
opportunities;  
 
• The proposed project is located at 401/403 Capitola Avenue.  The business is not located 

in an area with coastal access. The business will not have an effect on public trails or 
beach access. 
 

-11-

Item #: 3.A. 6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – June 5, 2014  12 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

(D) (2) (b) Shoreline Processes. Description of the existing shoreline conditions, 
including beach profile, accessibility and usability of the beach, history of erosion or 
accretion, character and sources of sand, wave and sand movement, presence of 
shoreline protective structures, location of the line of mean high tide during the season 
when the beach is at its narrowest (generally during the late winter) and the proximity of 
that line to existing structures, and any other factors which substantially characterize 
or affect the shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to 
shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to shoreline 
processes and beach profile unrelated to the proposed development. Description and 
analysis of any reasonably likely changes, attributable to the primary and cumulative 
effects of the project, to: wave and sand movement affecting beaches in the vicinity of 
the project; the profile of the beach; the character, extent, accessibility and usability of 
the beach; and any other factors which characterize or affect beaches in the vicinity. 
Analysis of the effect of any identified changes of the project, alone or in combination 
with other anticipated changes, will have upon the ability of the public to use public 
tidelands and shoreline recreation areas; 
 
• The proposed project is located at 401/403 Capitola Avenue.  No portion of the project is 

located along the shoreline or beach.   
 

(D) (2) (c) Historic Public Use. Evidence of use of the site by members of the general 
public for a continuous five-year period (such use may be seasonal). Evidence of the 
type and character of use made by the public (vertical, lateral, blufftop, etc., and for 
passive and/or active recreational use, etc.). Identification of any agency (or person) 
who has maintained and/or improved the area subject to historic public use and the 
nature of the maintenance performed and improvements made. Identification of the 
record owner of the area historically used by the public and any attempts by the owner 
to prohibit public use of the area, including the success or failure of those attempts. 
Description of the potential for adverse impact on public use of the area from the 
proposed development (including but not limited to, creation of physical or 
psychological impediments to public use);  
 

• There is no history of public use on the subject lot.     

(D)  (2) (d) Physical Obstructions. Description of any physical aspects of the 
development which block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the 
tidelands, public recreation areas, or other public coastal resources or to see the 
shoreline; 

• The proposed project is located at 401/403 Capitola Avenue.  The project will not block 
or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the tidelands, public recreation 
areas, or views to the shoreline.   

 
 (D) (2) (e) Other Adverse Impacts on Access and Recreation. Description of the 
development’s physical proximity and relationship to the shoreline and any public 
recreation area. Analysis of the extent of which buildings, walls, signs, streets or other 
aspects of the development, individually or cumulatively, are likely to diminish the 
public’s use of tidelands or lands committed to public recreation. Description of any 
alteration of the aesthetic, visual or recreational value of public use areas, and of any 
diminution of the quality or amount of recreational use of public lands which may be 
attributable to the individual or cumulative effects of the development.    
 

• The proposed project is located on private property that will not impact access and 

-12-

Item #: 3.A. 6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – June 5, 2014  13 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

recreation.  The project does not diminish the public’s use of tidelands or lands 
committed to public recreation nor alter the aesthetic, visual or recreational value of 
public use areas. 
 

 (D) (3) (a – c) Required Findings for Public Access Exceptions. Any determination that 
one of the exceptions of subsection (F) (2) applies to a development shall be supported 
by written findings of fact, analysis and conclusions which address all of the following: 

a. The type of access potentially applicable to the site involved (vertical, lateral, bluff 
top, etc.) and its location in relation to the fragile coastal resource to be protected, the 
agricultural use, the public safety concern, or the military facility which is the basis for 
the exception, as applicable; 

b. Unavailability of any mitigating measures to manage the type, character, intensity, 
hours, season or location of such use so that agricultural resources, fragile coastal 
resources, public safety, or military security, as applicable, are protected; 

c. Ability of the public, through another reasonable means, to reach the same area of 
public tidelands as would be made accessible by an access way on the subject land. 

• The project is not requesting a Public Access Exception, therefore these findings do 
not apply 

(D) (4) (a – f) Findings for Management Plan Conditions. Written findings in support of a 
condition requiring a management plan for regulating the time and manner or character 
of public access use must address the following factors, as applicable: 

a. Identification and protection of specific habitat values including the reasons 
supporting the conclusions that such values must be protected by limiting the hours, 
seasons, or character of public use; 

• The project is located in an existing commercial building.  There are no sensitive 
habitat areas on the property.   

 b.Topographic constraints of the development site; 

• The project is located on a flat lot.   

 c. Recreational needs of the public; 

• The project does not impact recreational needs of the public.  

 d. Rights of privacy of the landowner which could not be mitigated by setting the project 
back from the access way or otherwise conditioning the development; 

e. The requirements of the possible accepting agency, if an offer of dedication is the 
mechanism for securing public access; 

f. Feasibility of adequate setbacks, fencing, landscaping, and other methods as part of a 
management plan to regulate public use. 

-13-

Item #: 3.A. 6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – June 5, 2014  14 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

 
(D) (5)  Project complies with public access requirements, including submittal of 
appropriate legal documents to ensure the right of public access whenever, and as, 
required by the certified land use plan and Section 17.46.010 (coastal access 
requirements); 
 

• No legal documents to ensure public access rights  are required for the proposed 
project 

  
(D) (6) Project complies with visitor-serving and recreational use policies;  

 
 SEC. 30222 
 The use of private lands suitable for visitor-serving commercial recreational facilities designed 

to enhance public opportunities for coastal recreation shall have priority over private 
residential, general industrial, or general commercial development, but not over agriculture or 
coastal-dependent industry. 

• The project involves a commercial use within an existing neighborhood 
commercial zone.     

 SEC. 30223 
 Upland areas necessary to support coastal recreational uses shall be reserved for such uses, 

where feasible. 
• The project involves a commercial use within an existing neighborhood 

commercial lot of record.   
c)  Visitor-serving facilities that cannot be feasibly located in existing developed areas 
shall be located in existing isolated developments or at selected points of attraction for 
visitors. 

 
• The project involves a commercial use within an existing neighborhood 

commercial lot of record.   
 (D) (7)  Project complies with applicable standards and requirements for provision of 
public and private parking, pedestrian access, alternate means of transportation and/or 
traffic improvements; 
 

• The project involves a commercial use within an existing neighborhood 
commercial lot of record.  The project complies with applicable standards and 
requirements for provision for parking, pedestrian access, alternate means of 
transportation and/or traffic improvements.   

 
(D) (8)  Review of project design, site plan, signing, lighting, landscaping, etc., by the 
city’s architectural and site review committee, and compliance with adopted design 
guidelines and standards, and review committee recommendations; 
 
• The project complies with the standards established by the Municipal Code with the 

granting of a variance from the Planning Commission.   
  
(D) (9) Project complies with LCP policies regarding protection of public landmarks, 
protection or provision of public views; and shall not block or detract from public views 
to and along Capitola’s shoreline; 

 
• The project will not negatively impact public landmarks and/or public views.  The project 

-14-

Item #: 3.A. 6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – June 5, 2014  15 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

will not block or detract from public views to and along Capitola’s shoreline.   
 
(D) (10) Demonstrated availability and adequacy of water and sewer services; 
 
• The project is located on a legal lot of record with available water and sewer services.   

 
(D) (11) Provisions of minimum water flow rates and fire response times;  
 
• The project is located within close proximity of the Central Fire District.  Water is available 

at the location.   

  (D) (12) Project complies with water and energy conservation standards; 
 
• The project is a commercial use within an existing neighborhood commercial lot of record.  

The GHG emissions for the project are projected at less than significant impact. All water 
fixtures must comply with the low-flow standards of the Soquel Creek Water District. 

 
(D) (13) Provision of park dedication, school impact, and other fees as may be required;  
 
• The project will be required to pay appropriate fees prior to building permit issuance. 
 
(D) (14) Project complies with coastal housing policies, and applicable ordinances 
including condominium conversion and mobile home ordinances; 

 
• The project does not involve a condo conversion or mobile homes.   
 
(D) (15) Project complies with natural resource, habitat, and archaeological protection 
policies;  
 
• There are no impacts to natural resource, habitat, and archaeological resources.   
 
(D) (16) Project complies with Monarch butterfly habitat protection policies; 

 
• The project is outside of any identified sensitive habitats, specifically areas where Monarch 

Butterflies have been encountered, identified and documented. 
 

(D) (17) Project provides drainage and erosion and control measures to protect marine, 
stream, and wetland water quality from urban runoff and erosion; 
 
• The project will comply with drainage and erosion and control measures as conditions.  
 
(D) (18) Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professional for 
projects in seismic areas, geologically unstable areas, or coastal bluffs, and project 
complies with hazard protection policies including provision of appropriate setbacks 
and mitigation measures; 
 
• The project is not located in a geologically unstable area.    

 
(D) (19) All other geological, flood and fire hazards are accounted for and mitigated in 
the project design; 

 
• All geological, flood, and fire hazards are accounted for and mitigated in the project design.  

-15-

Item #: 3.A. 6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – June 5, 2014  16 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

   
(D) (20) Project complies with shoreline structure policies; 
  
• The proposed project is not located along a shoreline. 

  
(D) (21) The uses proposed are consistent with the permitted or conditional uses of the 
zoning district in which the project is located; 
 
• This use is an allowed use consistent with the neighborhood commercial zoning district.  

(D) (22) Conformance to requirements of all other city ordinances, zoning requirements, 
and project review procedures; 
 
• The project conforms to the requirements of all city ordinances, zoning requirements and 

project development review and development procedures with the granting of a variance 
by the Planning Commission. 

 
(D) (23) Project complies with the Capitola parking permit program as follows:  
 
• The parking demand is not increased through this application. 

 
The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Smith and Welch. No: Routh. 
Abstain: None. 

  
6.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT   

 
City Council will resume consideration of the General Plan adoption June 26. Council members 
expressed interest in having some Planning Commissioners present to discuss their views and 
FAR.  
 
On May 22 the Council accepted the work plan for the Zoning Ordinance update. 
 
The draft EIR for Monarch Cove is currently in public review with comments due July 14. Staff will 
then respond to comments before a hearing is set, and Director Grunow does not anticipate it will 
come to the Planning Commission before September.  
 

7.  COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS - None 
 
8.  ADJOURNMENT 

Vice Chair Smith adjourned the meeting at 8:08 p.m. to the regular meeting of the Planning 
Commission to be held on Thursday, July 17, 2014, at 7 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers, 
420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 
 
Approved by the Planning Commission on July 17, 2014. 

 
 

________________________________ 
Linda Fridy, Minute Clerk 
 

-16-

Item #: 3.A. 6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T 
 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  JULY 17th, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: 528 CAPITOLA AVENUE       #14-094        APN: 035-094-29 

Sign Permit for a new wall sign to be located at the Dignity Health Medical Group 
located at 528 Capitola Avenue on a parcel that is located within two zoning districts 
including CN (Commercial Neighborhood) and R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning 
District.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone, but does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit. 

  Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
  Property Owner: Harold LaFont 
  Representative: Bob Deschamps (Pro Signs Inc.), filed: 6/17/14 
  
APPLICANT PROPOSAL 
The applicant (Dignity Health) submitted a sign permit application for a second wall sign at their office 
located at 528 Capitola Avenue. The proposal is consistent with the General Plan and Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
DISCUSSION 
On June 17th, 2014, the City received an application for a new wall sign at Dignity Health that will face 
Beverly Avenue.  The new wall sign on the north side of the building requires approval by the 
Planning Commission. There is an existing wall sign along Capitola Avenue which will be replaced.  
The replacement sign fits within the original wall sign dimensions and is not illuminated.  This sign 
was approved administratively and does not require Planning Commission approval.   
 

The proposed new sign on Beverly Avenue complies with the requirements for wall signs listed within 
§17.57.020.B of the zoning code. The wall sign is located at the side entrance to the medical center.   
The property is allowed to have two walls signs due to the medical center being located on a corner 
lot and a monument sign not being present.  The 35 square-foot wall sign is well under the maximum 
size of one square foot of sign area for each linear foot of business frontage.  The business frontage 
on Beverly Avenue is 120 linear feet.   
 
The wall sign was originally proposed as internally illuminated with halo push-thru letters and logo.  
The sign faces Beverly Avenue and the adjacent residential property along Capitola Avenue. 
Illuminated signs can be an incompatible feature in neighborhoods with low density residential uses 
due to glare and visual clutter.  The applicant has responded to staff’s concern and agreed to remove 
the internal illumination from the sign.  The front portion of the property, in which the new sign is 
proposed, is located within the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) zoning district which is a mix of 
commercial and residential uses.  The rear portion of the lot is in the R-1 (Single Family) zoning 
district.   

-17-

Item #: 4.A. 528 Capitola Avenue 14-094.pdf



 

 
CEQA 
This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California Environmental Quality Act 
and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations. The proposed 
project involves a sign for an existing commercial space. No adverse environmental impacts were 
discovered during project review by either the Community Development Department Staff or the 
Planning Commission.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve project application #14-094 based on the 
following Conditions and Findings for Approval. 
 
CONDITIONS  
1.  The property is located at 528 Capitola Avenue on the corner of Capitola Avenue and Beverly 

Avenue.  There is no monument sign on the site.  The new sign application is for wall sign facing 
Beverly Avenue.  The sign will be 35 square feet. The proposed halo illumination is not approved 
within this application. 
 

2.  The proposed halo illumination on the new wall sign facing Beverly Avenue has not been 
approved within this application due to possible impacts of lighting and visual clutter on adjacent 
residential properties.     
 

3.  Prior to installation of a new sign, the applicant must obtain a permit from the Community 
Development Department and Building Department.   
 

4.  Prior to operation of a new business, the applicant shall obtain a business license from the City of 
Capitola. 

 
5.  This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance.   The applicant shall have an 

approved building permit and installation of the sign underway before this date to prevent permit 
expiration.   Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to expiration 
pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160. 

 
6.  The application shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission upon evidence of non-compliance 

with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions. 
 
FINDINGS 
A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 
Planning Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the application and determined 
that the proposed sign is allowed in the CN Zoning District.  Conditions of approval have been 
included to ensure the sign will secure the purpose of the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 
 

B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood.   
Planning Department Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the sign and 
determined that the sign complements the building form.  The sign maintains the character 
and integrity of the neighborhood within the City of Capitola. The proposed internal lighting has 
not been approved due to possible impact on adjacent property owners.  Conditions of 
approval have been included to carry out these objectives. 

  

-18-

Item #: 4.A. 528 Capitola Avenue 14-094.pdf



 

 
C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California 

Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 
The proposed project involves a sign for an existing commercial space. No adverse 
environmental impacts were discovered during project review by either the Planning 
Department Staff or the Planning Commission. 

 
Report Prepared By:  Katie Cattan, Senior Planner 
Attachment A – Sign Plans    
 P:\Planning Commission\2014 Meeting Packets\07-17-14 Planning Commission\14-094\  

-19-

Item #: 4.A. 528 Capitola Avenue 14-094.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-20-



-21-

Item #: 4.A. 528 Capitola Ave Sign Plan.pdf



-22-

Item #: 4.A. 528 Capitola Ave Sign Plan.pdf



-23-

Item #: 4.A. 528 Capitola Ave Sign Plan.pdf



-24-

Item #: 4.A. 528 Capitola Ave Sign Plan.pdf



 

 
 

S T A F F   R E P O R T 
 

TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  JULY 17, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: 2000 WHARF ROAD & ADJACENT TO 809 BAY AVENUE     #14-096  

APNs: 035-021-42; 035-371-01; and 035-371-02 
Coastal Development Permit application and Tree Removal Permit for the Soquel 
Pump Station Force Main Replacement project. The project runs on either side of 
and under Soquel Creek from property adjacent to Peery Park through the Rispin 
property to Clares Street.   
This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit, 
which is appealable to the California Coastal Commission after all possible 
appeals are exhausted through the City. 
Environmental Determination: Mitigated Negative Declaration 
Applicant: Santa Cruz County Sanitation District 
Property Owners: Santa Cruz County Sanitation District and City of Capitola 
Representative: Rachel Lather, filed: 06/17/14 

 
APPLICANT’S PROPOSAL 
The County of Santa Cruz Public Works Department is requesting a Coastal Development 
Permit from the City of Capitola for a project involving replacement of approximately 1,200 linear 
feet of a section of the Soquel transmission sewer main of which 300 linear feet run under 
Soquel Creek.  The Coastal Development Permit being considered by the Planning Commission 
is for the portion of the project between Bay Avenue and Wharf Road.  The project is located in 
the PF (Public Facility), CC (Community Commercial), and PF-F/P (Public Facility-Park) zoning 
districts.   
 
DISCUSSION 
The Soquel Pump Station Force Main Replacement Project would replace a section of the 
Soquel transmission main which currently runs under Soquel Creek. The new transmission line 
would be installed from the Soquel Pump Station (within the Nob Hill Shopping Center) to the 
existing gravity flow sewer pipeline within Clares Street.  The new line is approximately 1,200 
linear feet, 300 of which will be placed under Soquel Creek. The new line will go through three 
properties extending from the existing Santa Cruz County Sanitation District pump house (within 
the Nob Hill Shopping Center) through the City Owned Peery Park Parcel and Rispin Parcel to 
Clares Street.     
 
The purpose of the project is to prevent sanitary sewer overflows resulting from pipe failure. The 
Soquel Creek crossing was constructed in 1977 and includes a 27-inch diameter transmission 
crossing beneath Soquel Creek. The project includes utilizing a combination of trenchless and 
open trench construction methods to install the new line.  The project also includes mechanical 
updates to the Soquel Pump Station to enhance operational flexibility and reliability of the pump 

-25-

Item #: 4.B. Soquel Creek Coastal Permit Staff Report.pdf



 

station.  The improvements to the Pump Station also include odor control improvements to filter 
air before discharging it out of the pump station, in an effort to address existing concerns.    
 

 
 
The main objectives of the Local Coastal Program, as applied to this proposed project, relate to 
preserving coastal access, public views, and recreational opportunities along the coast.  The 
project will be consistent with these policies.   
 
Tree Removal Permit 
In order to make the upgrades to the pump station, four trees that were planted around the 
periphery of the building must be removed.  The applicant is required to replant 8 trees in 
compliance with the Capitola Municipal Code.   
 
Environmental Review 
This Project is subject to the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 
The Santa Cruz County Sanitation District is the CEQA lead agency. An Initial Study/Proposed 
Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) has been prepared under the direction of the District to 
fulfill the CEQA requirements.  The District Board will consider adoption of the Initial 
Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and approval of the project at their regularly scheduled 
Board meeting on August 7, 2014. This Initial Study/Proposed MND is intended to satisfy the 
requirements of CEQA (Public Resources Code, Div 13, §21000-21177), and the State CEQA 
Guidelines (California Code of Regulations, Title 14, §15000-15387). 
 
The environmental review process generated mitigation measures that will reduce potential 
impacts from the proposed development.  A summary of the potential significant project impacts 
and mitigation measures are included in the mitigation monitoring plan. The potentially 
significant impacts were identified to biological resources, cultural resources, hazards and 
hazardous materials, hydrology and water quality, noise, and mandatory findings of significance.   

-26-

Item #: 4.B. Soquel Creek Coastal Permit Staff Report.pdf



 

 
The following list of mitigations measures have been proposed within the mitigated negative 
declaration to ensure less than significant impacts from the project:  

 BIO-1: To mitigate potential impacts of the project for special-status birds and migratory 
passerines and raptors, noise generating construction activities will be planned during 
non-breeding season and a qualified wildlife biologist will conduct a pre-construction 
survey for any construction activities during the breeding season.      

 BIO-2: Protection measures for special-status bats during tree removal at the Soquel 
creek pump station includes survey of habitat by qualified bat biologist prior to removal 
of four trees adjacent to the pump station.    

 CR-1: Conduct a geoprobe investigation to confirm the boundaries of known 
archaeological sites and avoid disturbance. 

 CR-2: Treatment of archaeological resources inadvertently discovered during 
construction by a qualified archaeologist. 

 CR-3: Treatment of paleontological resources inadvertently discovered during 
construction by a professional paleontologist.  

 CR-4:   Protection of human remains if discovered during construction.  

 HAZ-1: Hazardous materials management including sampling and, if necessary, 
implementation of a soil and groundwater management plan.   

 HAZ-2: Utility design to prevent migration of contamination. 

 M-HY-1: Develop and implement a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan.  

 NOI-1: The nature of the horizontal directional drilling pipeline installation process could 
require nighttime activity during drilling for fusing of pipes for up to five nights.  Bypass 
pumping during pump station improvements could occur up to four weeks 24 hours a 
day during the construction period.  The District will secure a work hour exemption from 
the City for nighttime work in compliance with the City’s Municipal Code 

 NOI-2: Reduce daytime and nighttime construction related noise through a construction 
noise mitigation planning. 

 
Due to the large size of the document, the mitigation monitoring plan and initial study are on file 
with the Planning Department and is available for review by the public upon request. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve application #14-096 based on the 
following Conditions and the attached Coastal Findings (Attachment B). 
 
1. The project approval consists of a Coastal Development Permit to replace a sewer main 

currently located under the Soquel Creek with approximately 1,200 linear feet of a new 
transmission pipeline extending from the Soquel Pump Station on Bay Avenue to Clares 
Street and improvements to the existing pump station.   

 
2. A time schedule and phasing plan shall be submitted to and approved by the City of 

Capitola Public Works Director prior to commencement of the project.  The phasing plan 
shall include the work schedule, including what months of the year the construction will take 
place, construction hours, and traffic control plan.  

 
3. Required easements shall be documented and recorded prior to commencement of the 

project. 
 
4. The applicant shall be responsible for obtaining the necessary approvals for Riparian 

Exception from the County of Santa Cruz, Encroachment Permit from the California 

-27-

Item #: 4.B. Soquel Creek Coastal Permit Staff Report.pdf



 

Department of Transportation, a Coastal Development Permit from the City of Capitola, and 
a Lake and Streambed Alteration permit from the California Department of Fish and Wildlife. 

 
5. All mitigations measures proposed within the mitigated negative declaration for the project 

must be adhered to.  
 

6. The existing landscaping and trees adjacent to the Soquel Creek Pump Station will be 
removed to construct the flow meter room.  The four trees to be removed shall be replaced 
with 8 new trees in accordance with the City of Capitola tree replanting requirements. 

 
   

Report Prepared By:  Katie Cattan                     
    Senior Planner 
 
Attachment A – Project Plans 
Attachment B – Coastal Findings 
 
Please Note:   The Mitigated Negative Declaration for this project is available at City Hall.  

Contact staff Planner Katie Cattan at kcattan@ci.capitola.ca.us or (801) 475-
7300 to review the Negative Declaration.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P:\Planning Commission|2014 Meeting Packets|7-17-2014.docx 

-28-

Item #: 4.B. Soquel Creek Coastal Permit Staff Report.pdf



�������� � � 	 � 
 � �  �
���������� ���� �������� � �  ! " ! #  $% & ' ( ) ' * ( ' ) ) ( +,--./011/

234567689:64;6
<1=/10./011/ >?@ABCD?B BD ��EF�G ���G�H�I�J������ �K�L������

MNOPNQRSTR
UVWXYZ[VV\]^_] �`�L������abcdefgheei jdkjalmlnbo pqrsqrqt uvtwqxyzps{y|zp| ytqy

}}~����������������������������������
������������

������}~����������}����� ���� � ¡¢ ���£
¤¥¦ §¨ ©ª«¦ ¬§¥ ª®® ¬̄°± ²³§²´ µ ©̄¶ ¬̄§° ©³·°¦ ¬̄³¬® ²§§¦̧ ¬²´ ª¬´̧ ²ª® ²¹́ ©̄¶ ¬̄§° ©³·°¦ ¬̄

º»¼½¾¿ÀÁÂÃÄÅÆ

Ç ÈÉÊÇ ËÈÌÍ
Î ÊÏÐ ÑÐ ÒÍÓ Ò

Ô ÕÖ ×Ö ØÙÚÛÖ ÜÝÞÄÃß¼àÀáâ¼½ÃºßÄ¼ÅÃ º»¼½¾¿¼ãÄÆÅ¼À¿ÀÁäÅ å½Áß¼¿¼ãÄÆÅ

æ ¯° ²çè¦ ¬¦́ ·ª° ²§§¦ ¬ª° ³©²§̄¬̄©¦ ¦ ¬ª®¦ §§³²̄µ́ ©ª«¦ ¬̄©® ª§° ©²é¦ §¦ ¬̄̄µ́ ©ª«¦ ¬
ê® ¯°̈ ª° ²ç
¶ ª¹́¦® ²æ ç̄
ëìí ª©·¥îïëì ðëî çñïêí
ò çóëëôõö ð¸ ª¬° ª¶ ©³÷¸ ª¬¦° ª°¦ ¬̄¦̈ §° ©¦ ·°óëëôõö ðôìëïøùô̧ ú̄³²®¶ ©²²û¤ ©ª¬§í ª¦ ¬óïø ð¶ü̈ó̧¥ ²²° §óôìëïøùô ýò ðïïë þ´ «

ÿ��� �� �
�àÀáâ¼½Ã¿ÄÀ¼½ÃáÀ��		Àá
¼� ¿ÁÃ¼

� Ò � ÈÍÈ�ÊË� ËÒ� Ê�É ÇÐ ËÊ�ÉÒË
ê® ¯°° ²±́ �ç¸ ³§ª¬¨ é̄²

ºáÅÃÀÁ½Ã�á �
Û�� ��

�¼�ã¼áÂ¿á½��¼ÅÃã ¤¥¦ §´ ·̄³�²¬° ª¬°́¥ ²¦́ ²ª§ª¬´́ ²§¦ ¬§¦ ¬·̄©�̄©ª° ²´
¥ ²©²¦ ¬ �ª§ª¬¦ ¬§° ©³�²¬° ¯µ �©̄µ ²§§¦ ¬̄ª® §²©é¦ ·² �¦ §°¥ ² �©̄�²©° �̄µò ̈! ¬· þª¬´ §¥ ª®® ¬̄°± ²©²³§²¦́ ¬«¥ ¯® ²̄© ¦ ¬�ª©°µ ©̄ª¬�̄°¥ ²©�©̄" ²·° «¦°¥ ³̄°ò ̈! ¬· þ# §«©¦°° ²¬ ª³°¥ ©̄¦ ÷ª°¦ ¬̄ þ$ò ̈! ¬· þîïëî

%ÁÀ½»&'()
*+,-./012234

8
4
1
0
6
9
8

6
5

5 6778
å¿å¿ 9Þ Þ:;%å �<�=

1

>?@A?B?CDEF GHIAJHJAKILM?NHJAKIOPHIHQ?N >?@A?B?CDEF RKIOJNSTJAKIPHIHQ?NUVW>XYZLYGGYU[L\]G^Y]GL]>?@A?B?CDEF _NH``ATYIQAI??N[VRaGL\>XVaLbb

c defg dgf hei ejf ekkl m kjf ng klkopf qfri ejf ekkl m kjf ng klkopf qfri ejf ekklsf ng lf tgi ejf ekkl pu df lvklnhehwgu kx hdlo yr dez vvlhqdrs dg k

{|}|~|����� obllbagmfe

��}��|�~��� obllbagmfe~

~� �� �� ���� ����� ��� �� � ��� ����� ���� �� �� �� ��������

-29-

Item #: 4.B. Soquel Creek Pump Station Plans.pdf



��� ¡¢£�¤£¥¦§

¡̈©¡¦ª §«¬�¥̈§

ml m®m̄̄hēmle®mae m®mom®mo°boe° mgmaj±mflgboghele m̄̄m̄̄hēmle mjomaaeaabhajmhgef
odk®eh

mh²mnhhefemae²mf²e maj±maj±mfl ®g®ēnogdh²e ®³j®mgi³fb́jhe²eole
h

®f°̄®dnf°nō ®k®eog±kmhi ®kj®ealkmom̄ekeolj
hmglngea

®²g®ēno²ehlngmfgdh
²e

gmgmfn³bhonm g®gmlg±®mano g°³gbolhbffe°°eoanl
µ³nff

gngmalnhbo gfhgfemh gfgeolehfnoe gkjgbhhd̄mle°kelmf
jnje

gbgfemobdl gboggboghele gjgml±b°ngjhbleglnb
o

glhgeoleh gdf²gdf²ehl °ekb°ekbfna± °el°elmnf °n°hbjnofel °nm°nmkeleh °nj°dglnfenhbojnje °́̄°hḿnō °́µ°hn²émµ ¶e·ȩnalnō eemal ememg± egeo°gdh²e eggeggeolhng efefe²mlnbo efegefeglhng eje°̄eb³jm²ekeol eaklemaekeol ³gm³fmōe°gbdjfnōm
°mjleh

³°³bdo° ³̄³nona±e°̄hm°e ³±³nhe±µ°hmol ³f³fb́fnoe ³f̄³fmōe ³k³bhgekmno ³b³n®ehbjlng ³j²g³dae°jbfµ²noµfg±
fbhn°ejfmalng

³a³nona±e°adh³mge ³l³eelbh³bbl ¯̄ma ®̄̄hm°e®hemi ²̄̄mle²mf²e ± ¹±bhnº±bhnºbolmf ±°°±bhnºbolmf°nhegln
bomf°hnffnō

±°je±n̄±°eoanlµjbfµe
l±µfeoe

±l±en̄±l ng²nhhn̄mlnbogbolhb
f²mf²e

nonog± no²no²ehl nhhnhhn̄mlnbo »j»bnoljbfe »¼l»bnollheog± fmlfmlehmf f³fnoemh³eel fbōfbōnld°nomf flfe³l km̧km̧nkdk
k±kmo±bfe knoknonkdk knagknageffmoebda kbokbodkeol kbóeffkbonlbhnṓeff klfkmlehnmf kdlg°kmodmfbodon³bhk

lhm³³nggbolhbf °e²ngea ¶o·oé oobhl± ongoblnogbolhmgl obodk®eh olaobllbagmfe bgbogeoleh b°bdlan°e°nmkeleh b±eb²eh±em°efeglhng ba±mbggdjmlnbomfam³e
lµmo°±emfl± m°knonalhmlnbo jggjbhlfmo°gekeolg

boghele
jejfmnoeo° j±jbl±bfe jfjhbjehlµfnoe jhbjjhbjehlµ jh²jheaadhehe°dgnō

²mf²e
jdejd®fngdlnfnlµemae
keol

j²gjbfµ²noµfg±fbhn°e
jfmalng

j²kljm²ekeol h ¹hm°hm°nda hghefmln²egbkjmglnb
o

hgjheno³bhge°gboghe
lejnje

h°hbm° hb́ ¹h¼́hn̄±l ½b³ ½ḿµ hlhn̄±l h́hegµgfe°́mleh aabdl± ¹afbje agga°amolmghdºgbdolµ
amonlmlnbo°nalhngl

ag±ag±e°dfe aǵ°abcdefgheeímle
h°nalhngl

a°albhk°hmno a°g®albhk°hmnogmlg±
®mano

a°k±albhk°hmnokmo±b
fe

aeglaeglnbo aeh²aeh²nge a±la±eel an̄an̄omf ajegajegn³ngmlnboa acacdmhe aaamonlmhµaéeh aa³kamonlmhµaéeh³b
hgekmno

aak±amonlmhµaéehkm
o±bfe

aalalmnofeaaaleef almalmlnbo al°almo°mh° alfaleef l®klekjbhmhµ®eog±k
mhi

lglbjb³gdh® lgelekjbhmhµgboalh
dglnboemaekeol

l ¹leflefej±boe l̄ ¹l¼̄lbjb³̄hmle l±il±ngi lb®lbjb³®ehk lalhm³³ngan̄omf¼aeh²
nge

lµjlµjngmf doidoiob́o dbodofeaabl±eh́nae
oble° ² ¹²ehl²ehlngmf ²g²ehlngmfgdh²e ´́mleh ¹éal ¼́́nl± ḱ́mlehkeleh ĺh́mleh ²́́mleh²mf²e

¾���~�¿ÀÁ��|��|�
�Ájfmobh°elmnfn°eoln³neh

ÂÃÂÄÅÂÄ ÆÇÈÅÂÄ
Æ g ½ÉÂÆ°elmnfn°eoln³neh °hḿnōodk®ehbo ±́ng±°elmnfmjjemha �ÊÁ}�|�~jfmobh°elmnfn°eoln³neh m g ½ÉÂÆaeglnbon°eoln³neh °hḿnōodk®ehbó±ng± aeglnbómahe³eheoge°ËÌÍËÍÎÏÐ

ÏÑÒÎÓÒÔÕ amonlmhµaéehkmo±bfe amonlmhµaéehgfemobdl albhk°hmnokmo±bfe albhk°hmnonofel albhk°hmnogmlg±®mano ³nhe±µ°hmol ḿleh²mf²e ḿlehkeleh ®mgi³fb́jhe²eoleh »bnoljbfemo°̄dµ́nhe alheelfn̄±l amonlmhµaéehfnoe amonlmhµaéeh³bhgekmno albhk°hmno ḿlehfnoe m̄afnoe do°eh̄hbdo°efeglhng b²eh±em°efeglhng do°eh̄hbdo°gbkkdongmlnbo g±mnofnoi³eoge ±nalbhngalboémff lhee jbl±bfefbgmlnbo gbolhbfjbnol lekjbhmhµ®eog±kmhi no°ȩgbolbdh nolehke°nmlegbolbdh mjjhb̧nkmlejhbjehlµfnoe emaekeol lb®e°ekbfna±e°

ggn²nf jhbgeaaÖnoalhdkeolmlnbo
Ãfmh̄eagmfe²néa É ×ag±e°dfeamo°°nm̄hmka°elmnfaÆ Å ØÙÚÛxim Â

na ek
cÜiiÝÝÞyi jfmoa efe²mlnboa aeglnboaēoehmf

alhdgldhmf keg±mongmf efeglhngmf°nagnjfnoe¶n³Åo°felleh°ean̄omlb
h

obldae° ¹hejfmge°́nl±Ç ½Ç· ßiÝÝim ¯sàcpàyßàÙi ēoehmfá âãäã no°n²n°dmf°hḿnōodk®eh a±eellµje
ª �å£¦©ª¡§£©¦�¤£¥¦

§æ¡¡¤£¦ª¡ç }}~����������������������������������
������������

������}~����������}����� ���� � ¡¢ ���£
¤¥¦ §¨ ©ª«¦ ¬§¥ ª®® ¬̄°± ²³§²´ µ ©̄¶ ¬̄§° ©³·°¦ ¬̄³¬® ²§§¦̧ ¬²´ ª¬´̧ ²ª® ²¹́ ©̄¶ ¬̄§° ©³·°¦ ¬̄

º»¼½¾¿ÀÁÂÃÄÅÆ

Ç ÈÉÊÇ ËÈÌÍ
Î ÊÏÐ ÑÐ ÒÍÓ Ò

Ô ÕÖ ×Ö ØÙÚÛÖ ÜÝÞÄÃß¼àÀáâ¼½ÃºßÄ¼ÅÃ º»¼½¾¿¼ãÄÆÅ¼À¿ÀÁäÅ å½Áß¼¿¼ãÄÆÅ

æ ¯° ²çè¦ ¬¦́ ·ª° ²§§¦ ¬ª° ³©²§̄¬̄©¦ ¦ ¬ª®¦ §§³²̄µ́ ©ª«¦ ¬̄©® ª§° ©²é¦ §¦ ¬̄̄µ́ ©ª«¦ ¬
ê® ¯°̈ ª° ²ç
¶ ª¹́¦® ²æ ç̄
ëìí ª©·¥îïëì ðëî çñïêí
ò çóëëôõö ð¸ ª¬° ª¶ ©³÷¸ ª¬¦° ª°¦ ¬̄¦̈ §° ©¦ ·°óëëôõö ðôìëïøùô̧ ú̄³²®¶ ©²²û¤ ©ª¬§í ª¦ ¬óïø ð¶ü̈ó̧¥ ²²° §óôìëïøùô ýò ðïïî þ´ «

ÿ��� �� �
�àÀáâ¼½Ã¿ÄÀ¼½ÃáÀ��		Àá
¼� ¿ÁÃ¼

� Ò � ÈÍÈ�ÊË� ËÒ� Ê�É ÇÐ ËÊ�ÉÒË
ê® ¯°° ²±́ �ç¸ ³§ª¬¨ é̄²

ºáÅÃÀÁ½Ã�á �
Û�� ��

�¼�ã¼áÂ¿á½��¼ÅÃã ¤¥¦ §´ ·̄³�²¬° ª¬°́¥ ²¦́ ²ª§ª¬´́ ²§¦ ¬§¦ ¬·̄©�̄©ª° ²´
¥ ²©²¦ ¬ �ª§ª¬¦ ¬§° ©³�²¬° ¯µ �©̄µ ²§§¦ ¬̄ª® §²©é¦ ·² �¦ §°¥ ² �©̄�²©° �̄µò ̈! ¬· þª¬´ §¥ ª®® ¬̄°± ²©²³§²¦́ ¬«¥ ¯® ²̄© ¦ ¬�ª©°µ ©̄ª¬�̄°¥ ²©�©̄" ²·° «¦°¥ ³̄°ò ̈! ¬· þ# §«©¦°° ²¬ ª³°¥ ©̄¦ ÷ª°¦ ¬̄ þ$ò ̈! ¬· þîïëî

%ÁÀ½»&'()
*+,-./012234

8
4
1
0
6
9
8

6
5

5 677è
å¿å¿ 9Þ Þ:;%å �<�=

2

ffmo°agmje

ÂÆ×ÄéÄÃÄ Æ¼éÇÈÆÄ ½ÂÇ

°°ekbfnlnbo

obleêoblmffm®®he²nmlnboamo°a
µk®bfa

a±b́omhedae°nol±najhb»egl

lhm³³nggbbh°nomlnbolh

j±Æ

±±²mg

ëìíîìïðì ïîñòìóëôììõ ïîñòìó
ëôììõõöõ÷ì

øìïìóù÷ úø ûüüúõöõ÷ìëôììõ ýþöðöïöõÿùï�÷�ðùõö�ïñù�ë
�ø ûüü�ùòòóìþöùõö�ïë ýëÿñò�÷ë ý÷ìøìï� ý�óù�öïø�ìëöøïùõö�ï ýùï�ëôììõöï�ì�

�ø ûüü�ëîóþìÿð�ïõó�÷�öùøó
ùñùï���õô�÷ìëðôì�î÷ì

�ø ûüü�ëõùøöïøùóìù�÷ùï � ø ûüü�øìïìóù÷ï�õìë �ìñ�÷öõö�ï 	� ûúüúë�íîì÷ðóìì
�îñ�ëõùõ
ö�ïëöõì�ìñ�÷öõö�ï�÷ùï

�� ûúü�ë�íîì÷ðóìì
�îñ�ëõù
õö�ï�îñ�ó��ñ�ìñ�÷öõö�ï�÷ù
ï

�� û�üúë�íîì÷ðóìì
�îñ�ëõù
õö�ï�îñ�ó��ñ�ìñ�÷öõö�ïëìð
õö�ïë

ðöþö÷ ð ûúüúëöõì�÷ùï ý
ìÿñù� ýùï�õìñ��óùóÿð�ïëõóîðõö�ïì
ùëìñìïõë

úüð ûúü�ëì�ìó�÷ùïùï��ó��ö÷ì ûëõùúü���õ�ëõùú���ü
úúð ûúü�ëì�ìó�÷ùïùï��ó��ö÷ì ûëõùú���üõ�ëõùú��ü

ú�ð ûúü�ëì�ìó�÷ùïùï��ó��ö÷ì ûëõùú��üõ�ìï�
ú�ð ûúü�ë�íîì÷ðóìì
�îñ�ëõùõ
ö�ïðöþö÷ëöõì�÷ùï

ú�ð û�üúðöþö÷�ìõùö÷ë ûú
ú�ð û�ü�ðöþö÷�ìõùö÷ë û�

ú	 ð û�ü�ðöþö÷�ìõùö÷ë û�
÷ùï�ëðù�ì �ï�õöïð÷î�ì�öïü�ëîòñöõõù÷� ú�÷ ûüüú�÷ùïõöïøùï�öóóöøùõö�

ï÷ìøìï�ùï�ï�õìë
ú�÷ ûúüú�÷ùïõöïøùï�öóóöøùõö�ï
�÷ùï

ú÷ û�üú�÷ùïõöïøùï�öóóöøùõö�
ï�ìõùö÷ë

ëõóîðõîóù÷ �üë ûüüúëõóîðõîóù÷ùòòóìþöùõö�ïë ýëÿñò�÷ë ý÷ìøìï� ýùï�ï�õìë

�úë ûüü�øìïìóù÷ëõóîðõîóù÷ï
�õìë

��ë ûüü�õÿ�öðù÷ëõóîðõîóù÷�ì
õùö÷ë ûú

��ë ûüü�õÿ�öðù÷ëõóîðõîóù÷�ì
õùö÷ë û�

��ë ûüü�ëõùõìñìïõ��ë�ìðöù÷ö
ïë�ìðõö�ïë

��ë ûúüúë�íîì÷ðóìì
�îñ�ëõùõö�ï û�÷��ñìõìóó��ñ��îï�ùõö�ï ýøóùõöïø ýùï�ó����÷ùïë

�	ë ûúúüë�íîì÷ðóìì
�îñ�ëõùõö
�ï ûõóùïëöõö�ïëõóîðõîóì��îï�ùõö
�ïùï�ó����÷ùï

��ë û�üúë�íîì÷ðóìì
�îñ�ëõù
õö�ï û�÷��ñìõìóó��ñëìðõö�ïë

�� ë û�úüë�íîì÷ðóìì
�îñ�ëõù
õö�ï ûõóùïëöõö�ïëõóîðõîóìëìðõö�ïë

�ë û�üúëõóîðõîóù÷�ìõùö÷ë ûú
�üë û	üúëõóîðõîóù÷ëðôì�î÷ìë ñìðôùïöðù÷ �úñ ûüüúñìðôùïöðù÷ùòòóìþöùõö�ïë ý÷ìøìï� ýùï�øìïìóù÷ï�õìë

��ñ ûúüúë�íîì÷ðóìì
�îñ�ëõùõ
ö�ï�îñ�ó��ññìðôùïöðù÷�÷ù
ï

��ñ ûúü�ë�íîì÷ðóìì
�îñ�ëõùõ
ö�ï�÷��ñìõìóó��ñùï�ùóþ
þùî÷õñìðôùïöðù÷�÷ùï

��ñ û�üúë�íîì÷ðóìì
�îñ�ëõù
õö�ïëìðõö�ïù

��ñ û�ü�ë�íîì÷ðóìì
�îñ�ëõù
õö�ïëìðõö�ïò

�	ñ û�ü�ë�íîì÷ðóìì
�îñ�ëõù
õö�ï�îñ�ó��ñùï��÷��ñìõì
óó��ñëìðõö�ïë

��ñ û	üúë�íîì÷ðóìì
�îñ�ëõù
õö�ïñìðôùïöðù÷ëðôì�î÷ìë

ôþùð ��ô ûüüúôþùðùòòóìþöùõö�ïë ýëÿñò�÷ë÷ìøìï� ýùï�ï�õìë
�ô ûúüúë�íîì÷ðóìì
�îñ�ëõùõ

ö�ï�÷��ñìõìóó��ñôþùð�÷ù
ï ýëìðõö�ï ý�ìõùö÷ë ýùï�ëðôì�î÷ìë

ì÷ìðõóöðù÷ �üì ûüüúì÷ìðõóöðù÷÷ìøìï�ùï�
ùòòóìþöùõö�ïë

�úì ûúüúë�íîì÷ðóìì
�îñ�ëõùõ
ö�ï�îñ�ó��ñì÷ìðõóöðù÷�÷ù
ï

��ì ûúü�ë�íîì÷ðóìì
�îñ�ëõù
õö�ï�÷��ñìõìóì÷ìðõóöðù÷�÷
ùï

��ì ûúü�ë�íîì÷ðóìì
�îñ�ëõù
õö�ïñ�õ�óó��ñì÷ìðõóöðù÷�÷
��ó�÷ùï

��ì û�üúì÷ìðõóöðù÷�ìõùö÷ë ��ì û	üú ëöïø÷ì û÷öïì�öùøóùñùï�ëðôì�î÷ì �	ì û	ü�ì÷ìðõóöðù÷ëðôì�î÷ìë öïëõóîñìïõùõö�ï ��ö ûüüúöïëõóîñìïõùõö�ï÷ìøìï
�ùï�ùòòóìþöùõö�ïë

��ö û	üú�ó�ðìëëùï�öïëõóîñì
ïõùõö�ï�öùøóùñ

õóù��öð�ôùëöïøùï�ð�ïëõóùöï
õë �õ ûúüúë�íîì÷ðóìì
�îñ�ëõùõ

ö�ï�ôùëöïø�õóù��öðð�ïëõóùö
ïõë�÷ùï û�ôùëìú

�üõ ûúü�ë�íîì÷ðóìì
�îñ�ëõù
õö�ï�ôùëöïø�õóù��öðð�ïëõóù
öïõë�÷ùï û�ôùëì�

�úõ ûúü�ë�íîì÷ðóìì
�îñ�ëõù
õö�ï�ôùëöïø�õóù��öðð�ïëõóù
öïõë�÷ùï û�ôùëì�

��õ ûúü�ë�íîì÷ðóìì
�îñ�ëõù
õö�ï�ôùëöïø�õóù��öðð�ïëõóù
öïõë�÷ùï û�ôùëì�

��õ ûúü�ë�íîì÷ðóìì
�îñ�ëõù
õö�ï�ôùëöïø�õóù��öðð�ïëõóù
öïõë�÷ùï û�ôùëì�

��õ ûúü	ð÷ùóìëëõ ý�ôùó�ó� ýùï��	õôùþìõóù��öðð�ïëõóùöï
õë�÷ùïùï�õÿ�öðù÷ëìðõö�ï

��õ ûúü�õóù��öðð�ïõó�÷�ôùëöï
ø

ñ���ùõ�ïöðô�÷ð�ïðóìõìóì�ù
öó�ó��ìðõ�óù�öïøë �	øúë�íîì÷ð

óìì
�îñ�ëõùõö�ïð�ïðóìõìó
ì�ùöóõöõ÷ìëôììõ

��ëúë�íîì÷ð
óìì
�îñ�ëõùõö�ïð�ïðóìõìó
ì�ùöó�îñ�ó��ñ�÷��ó�÷ùï

��ë�ë�íîì÷ð
óìì
�îñ�ëõùõö�ïð�ïðóìõìó
ì�ùöóöïõìóñì�öùõì�÷��ó�÷ùï
ùï�ëìðõö�ïë

� ë�ë�íîì÷ð
óìì
�îñ�ëõùõö�ïð�ïðóìõìó
ì�ùöóñ�õ�óùï�øìïìóùõ�óó�
�ñ�÷��ó�÷ùïùï�ëìðõö�ïë

	üë�ë�íîì÷ð
óìì
�îñ�ëõùõö�ïð�ïðóìõìó
ì�ùöóóì�ùöó�ìõùö÷ëùï�ï�õìë

	úøúôö��ìïòì
ùðô�îñ�ëõùõö�ïð�ïðóìõìóì
�ùöóõöõ÷ìëôììõ

	�ëúôö��ìïòì
ùðô�îñ�ëõùõö�ïð�ïðóìõìóì
�ùöó�îñ�ó��ñ�÷��ó�÷ùï

	�ë�ôö��ìïòì
ùðô�îñ�ëõùõö�ïð�ïðóìõìóì
�ùöóöïõìóñì�öùõì�÷��ó�÷ùï

	�ë�ôö��ìïòì
ùðô�îñ�ëõùõö�ïð�ïðóìõìóì
�ùöóñ�õ�óùï�øìïìóùõ�óó��
ñ�÷��ó�÷ùï

	�ë�ôö��ìïòì
ùðô�îñ�ëõùõö�ïð�ïðóìõìóì
�ùöóóì�ùöó�ìõùö÷ëùï�ï�õìë

-30-

Item #: 4.B. Soquel Creek Pump Station Plans.pdf



w�ytqss{tqq{
utypwqswvwztw�q� � � � � � � � �

��� ��� !"��� #$%&$'(&'$$&) * + * , - . / -

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 4 4 8
s9v::zp|wqp{qt

;<=;>?;?@>>? ABCDEFGHDIIH

JKLMNOPQRP

JSTLNOPQRP

JUQVNOPQRP
VPWXYZNY{tv{{qts{tqq{

sv[\q�wtqq] :\x:s{y{zvp
}}~����������������������������������
������������

������}~����������}����� ���� � ¡¢ ���£
¤¥¦ §¨ ©ª«¦ ¬§¥ ª®® ¬̄°± ²³§²´ µ ©̄¶ ¬̄§° ©³·°¦ ¬̄³¬® ²§§¦̧ ¬²´ ª¬´̧ ²ª® ²¹́ ©̄¶ ¬̄§° ©³·°¦ ¬̄

º»¼½¾¿ÀÁÂÃÄÅÆ

Ç ÈÉÊÇ ËÈÌÍ
Î ÊÏÐ ÑÐ ÒÍÓ Ò

Ô ÕÖ ×Ö ØÙÚÛÖ ÜÝÞÄÃß¼àÀáâ¼½ÃºßÄ¼ÅÃ º»¼½¾¿¼ãÄÆÅ¼À¿ÀÁäÅ å½Áß¼¿¼ãÄÆÅ

æ ¯° ²çè¦ ¬¦́ ·ª° ²§§¦ ¬ª° ³©²§̄¬̄©¦ ¦ ¬ª®¦ §§³²̄µ́ ©ª«¦ ¬̄©® ª§° ©²é¦ §¦ ¬̄̄µ́ ©ª«¦ ¬
ê® ¯°̈ ª° ²ç
¶ ª¹́¦® ²æ ç̄
ëìí ª©·¥îïëì ðëî çñëêí
ò çóëëôõö ð¸ ª¬° ª¶ ©³÷¸ ª¬¦° ª°¦ ¬̄¦̈ §° ©¦ ·°óëëôõö ðôìëïøùô̧ ú̄³²®¶ ©²²û¤ ©ª¬§í ª¦ ¬óïø ð¶ü̈ó̧¥ ²²° §óôìëïøùô ýò ðïïõ þ´ «

ÿ��� �� �
�àÀáâ¼½Ã¿ÄÀ¼½ÃáÀ��		Àá
¼� ¿ÁÃ¼

� Ò � ÈÍÈ�ÊË� ËÒ� Ê�É ÇÐ ËÊ�ÉÒË
ê® ¯°° ²±́ �ç¸ ³§ª¬¨ é̄²

ºáÅÃÀÁ½Ã�á �
Û�� ��

�¼�ã¼áÂ¿á½��¼ÅÃã ¤¥¦ §´ ·̄³�²¬° ª¬°́¥ ²¦́ ²ª§ª¬´́ ²§¦ ¬§¦ ¬·̄©�̄©ª° ²´
¥ ²©²¦ ¬ �ª§ª¬¦ ¬§° ©³�²¬° ¯µ �©̄µ ²§§¦ ¬̄ª® §²©é¦ ·² �¦ §°¥ ² �©̄�²©° �̄µò ̈! ¬· þª¬´ §¥ ª®® ¬̄°± ²©²³§²¦́ ¬«¥ ¯® ²̄© ¦ ¬�ª©°µ ©̄ª¬�̄°¥ ²©�©̄" ²·° «¦°¥ ³̄°ò ̈! ¬· þ# §«©¦°° ²¬ ª³°¥ ©̄¦ ÷ª°¦ ¬̄ þ$ò ̈! ¬· þîïëî

%ÁÀ½»&'()
*+,-./012234

8
4
1
0
6
9
8

6
5

5 677̂
å¿¿_ 9Þ Þ:;%å �åå̀<:�

X

Êa¿{Á�}�~�¿��
À|�b¿��

~ ÂÅÂÂÄÆÂÂÄ ÆÇÈÆÂÂÄ

§c ¢¡«d¥¦¤ ¥̈¦¥¤¡
§

®eog±kmhinajbnoleÉÆéÂ ¹gdļnol±egboghelean°émfi bol±eabdl±́ealehoan°efnoeb³®
mµm²eode ¹®mae°djbo

gbdolµb³amolmghdº®eog±kmhie
ØfØ°eaghn®e°maÄ®hmaa

gmjnoaegbhb³abcdefgheeijdk
jalmlnbo ¹Äalmkje°

efe² gÅÅ gÃÆ¶°ealhbµe°®µgboalhdglnbo· jbnoleÉÆéÂa±b́omaefe²mlnb
oÈØÃ gÂ×Ä³eel¶ō²°Åf·

gbolbdhnoleh²mfÈÆ³bbl °nkeoanboamhea±b́ono³eelmo°
°egnkmfal±eheb³

l±najhb»egladh²eµ́magbkjfele
°®µ®b́kmomo°

ńffnmkagboadflnōgn²nfeōnoeehá
nl±m°°nlnbomfnojdl

³hbkl±egbdolµb³amolmghdº g l±eadh²eµ́magbkjfele°noaejl
ek®eh ¹ÅÂÆØ ghijkilm ni opjqmmjrsjptumvphkvljpi

tlsjtltjwxvjmqt
vlymhjkri
xxmnjp

z{| }~����� ����� ��z� �z�����|� ��}������ }��� }~�����~� �� �| }����z�z�� ���� ��� }���� ��~� ����� }�� �� �}��� }~�
����~�}�� �| � �

�{| }~����� ����� ��z� �z�����|� ��}�� ��  }� �~�{¡�����¢ �~�� �}�� ���� ~�� �� ~}�� �¡��� }�� �� �}� �~
�}| �� �

¡{| }~����� ����� ��z� �z�����|� ��}�� ��  }� �~�{¡������ ���� �� �}� �~�}| �� ����¢ �~�� �}�� ���� ~�
� �� ~}�� �

�{| }~����z� �z�����|� ��}�� ��  }� �~�{���z�z�¢ �~�� ��� }���� ��~� �¡��� }�� ��� }����
��~� �

�{| }~����z� �z�����|� ��}������ }��� }~�����~ � �~���}� �{| }�����£��� ���� �� �� ¤��� ��~� �z���� ���� ���� ��
�}��� }~�����~�}�� �| � �

�{| }~����z� �z���|� ��}������ }��� }~�����~ � �~���}� �{ ���~�� �¡���z��� ���� ��� }���� ��~� �z�£�  ��� ��
�~����}|¥ �

� � }~���z� �z�z£�¦ }~� �� ~� �~��¥ ��§ }�|̈ }��� ����¡z�¢ �~�� �� �~����}|¥ ����� }�� ��� }���� ��~� �

� � }~���z� �z�z£���|� ��}�� z��  }� �~�{���¡z�¢ �~�� �� �~����}|¥ �zz��� }�� ��� }���� ��~� �

z£ � }~��� z� �z�z£���|� ��}������ }��� }~�����~ � �~���}� �{ ���~�� �������� ���� �� �}� �~��� �~ �z���  ��� ��� }����
��~� �

zz�� �©©� �¤ { ��� �~z� �z�����|� ��}�� ¡�  }� �~{ ���~�� ��£��¡�  ��� �� �}�� �| � ��£�¢ �~�� �}�� ��� }����
��~� �

z��� �©©� �¤ { ��� �~z� �z���¦ }~��� ~����| ��}��ª �| ��� ��|�� ������¢ �~�� �� �� �~�� ~}� ��}�� �| � �z�£�� }�� ��
�� �~�� ~}� ��}�� �| � �ª� �~�}~�� ������ �~���

�}�� �| �� �
«¥¤æ¥̈¡§dæ¡ªc̈¡

aee°hḿnōag ½ÆÂÅl±hbd̄±g ½ÆÂÉ³bhjbl±bfefbgmlnboa

-31-

Item #: 4.B. Soquel Creek Pump Station Plans.pdf



}}~����������������������������������
������������

������}~����������}����� ���� � ¡¢ ���£
¤¥¦ §¨ ©ª«¦ ¬§¥ ª®® ¬̄°± ²³§²´ µ ©̄¶ ¬̄§° ©³·°¦ ¬̄³¬® ²§§¦̧ ¬²´ ª¬´̧ ²ª® ²¹́ ©̄¶ ¬̄§° ©³·°¦ ¬̄

º»¼½¾¿ÀÁÂÃÄÅÆ

Ç ÈÉÊÇ ËÈÌÍ
Î ÊÏÐ ÑÐ ÒÍÓ Ò

Ô ÕÖ ×Ö ØÙÚÛÖ ÜÝÞÄÃß¼àÀáâ¼½ÃºßÄ¼ÅÃ º»¼½¾¿¼ãÄÆÅ¼À¿ÀÁäÅ å½Áß¼¿¼ãÄÆÅ

æ ¯° ²çè¦ ¬¦́ ·ª° ²§§¦ ¬ª° ³©²§̄¬̄©¦ ¦ ¬ª®¦ §§³²̄µ́ ©ª«¦ ¬̄©® ª§° ©²é¦ §¦ ¬̄̄µ́ ©ª«¦ ¬
ê® ¯°̈ ª° ²ç
¶ ª¹́¦® ²æ ç̄
ëìí ª©·¥îïëì ðëî çñëêí
ò çóëëôõö ð¸ ª¬° ª¶ ©³÷¸ ª¬¦° ª°¦ ¬̄¦̈ §° ©¦ ·°óëëôõö ðôìëïøùô̧ ú̄³²®¶ ©²²û¤ ©ª¬§í ª¦ ¬óïø ð¶ü̈ó̧¥ ²²° §óôìëïøùô ýò ðïïì þ´ «

ÿ��� �� �
�àÀáâ¼½Ã¿ÄÀ¼½ÃáÀ��		Àá
¼� ¿ÁÃ¼

� Ò � ÈÍÈ�ÊË� ËÒ� Ê�É ÇÐ ËÊ�ÉÒË
ê® ¯°° ²±́ �ç¸ ³§ª¬¨ é̄²

ºáÅÃÀÁ½Ã�á �
Û�� ��

�¼�ã¼áÂ¿á½��¼ÅÃã ¤¥¦ §´ ·̄³�²¬° ª¬°́¥ ²¦́ ²ª§ª¬´́ ²§¦ ¬§¦ ¬·̄©�̄©ª° ²´
¥ ²©²¦ ¬ �ª§ª¬¦ ¬§° ©³�²¬° ¯µ �©̄µ ²§§¦ ¬̄ª® §²©é¦ ·² �¦ §°¥ ² �©̄�²©° �̄µò ̈! ¬· þª¬´ §¥ ª®® ¬̄°± ²©²³§²¦́ ¬«¥ ¯® ²̄© ¦ ¬�ª©°µ ©̄ª¬�̄°¥ ²©�©̄" ²·° «¦°¥ ³̄°ò ̈! ¬· þ# §«©¦°° ²¬ ª³°¥ ©̄¦ ÷ª°¦ ¬̄ þ$ò ̈! ¬· þîïëî

%ÁÀ½»&'()
*+,-./012234

8
4
1
0
6
9
8

6
5

5 677¬
å¿à̀ 9Þ Þ:;%å �åå̀<:�

X

Ê��b|~b�¿Á����
~

ÂéÂÄÃÂÄ ÆÇÈÃÂÄ
 ® ¯  ° ± ² ³

´µ¶µ·¸¹º¸

§æ¡¡¤©¡¦¡ �̈¦¥¤¡§ Æ gaeeajegn³ngmlnboaeglnboÆÂ ½Æ g×³bhalbhḱmleh jbffdlnbojhe²eolnbohecdnhekeo
la gl±ejhb»egl

nagboan°ehe°mhnaife²efÅ g Å ggbolhmglbha±mff®eheajboan®fe
³bhjhb²n°nō

mffdlnfnlnea ¹³eognōmo°aegdhnlµb³l±ealm̄n
ō

mhem g

»¼½¾¿ÀÁÂ¿¿Ã

eolhmogelb alm̄nōmhem
ȩnalnōkb°dfmh ±bkelbhekmnofnknlab³ h̄m²efe°mhem

h̄maamhemmjjhb̧nkmle lhee°hnjfnoe
y:pÄÅÆ ÇÄÈÈ ÇÄÅ y:pÄÅÆ ÇÅÉÈ ÇÄÈ

y:pÄÅÆ ÇÄÊÈ ÇËÅ
y:pÄÅÆ ÇÅÉÈ ÇÄÊ
y:pÄÅÆ ÇÅÉÈ ÇÄÅ

y:pÄÅÆ ÇÄÈÈ ÇÄË
y:pÄÅÆ ÇÄÈÈ ÇÄÌ

y:pÄÅÍ ÇÄÈÈ ÇÈÌ

alm̄nōmhem fnknla

-32-

Item #: 4.B. Soquel Creek Pump Station Plans.pdf



gbolhmglbha±mffhekb²el±enhhn̄
mlnbo

jnjnōmo°²mf²ea ¹®mgi³fb́jhe²eoleh ¹
kbonlbhnṓeff ¹l±heelheea ¹ fmo°agmjnō ¹gboghelēdllehmo° gboghelegdh®mahecdnhe°lb gboalhdgll±eoé³fb́kelehhb

bk
}}~����������������������������������
������������

������}~����������}����� ���� � ¡¢ ���£
¤¥¦ §¨ ©ª«¦ ¬§¥ ª®® ¬̄°± ²³§²´ µ ©̄¶ ¬̄§° ©³·°¦ ¬̄³¬® ²§§¦̧ ¬²´ ª¬´̧ ²ª® ²¹́ ©̄¶ ¬̄§° ©³·°¦ ¬̄

º»¼½¾¿ÀÁÂÃÄÅÆ

Ç ÈÉÊÇ ËÈÌÍ
Î ÊÏÐ ÑÐ ÒÍÓ Ò

Ô ÕÖ ×Ö ØÙÚÛÖ ÜÝÞÄÃß¼àÀáâ¼½ÃºßÄ¼ÅÃ º»¼½¾¿¼ãÄÆÅ¼À¿ÀÁäÅ å½Áß¼¿¼ãÄÆÅ

æ ¯° ²çè¦ ¬¦́ ·ª° ²§§¦ ¬ª° ³©²§̄¬̄©¦ ¦ ¬ª®¦ §§³²̄µ́ ©ª«¦ ¬̄©® ª§° ©²é¦ §¦ ¬̄̄µ́ ©ª«¦ ¬
ê® ¯°̈ ª° ²ç
¶ ª¹́¦® ²æ ç̄
ëìí ª©·¥îïëì ðëî çñîêí
ò çóëëôõö ð¸ ª¬° ª¶ ©³÷¸ ª¬¦° ª°¦ ¬̄¦̈ §° ©¦ ·°óëëôõö ðôìëïøùô̧ ú̄³²®¶ ©²²û¤ ©ª¬§í ª¦ ¬óïø ð¶ü̈ó̧¥ ²²° §óôìëïøùô ý¨ ðëïë þ´ «

ÿ��� �� �
�àÀáâ¼½Ã¿ÄÀ¼½ÃáÀ��		Àá
¼� ¿ÁÃ¼

� Ò � ÈÍÈ�ÊË� ËÒ� Ê�É ÇÐ ËÊ�ÉÒË
ê® ¯°° ²±́ �ç¸ ³§ª¬¨ é̄²

ºáÅÃÀÁ½Ã�á �
Û�� ��

�¼�ã¼áÂ¿á½��¼ÅÃã ¤¥¦ §´ ·̄³�²¬° ª¬°́¥ ²¦́ ²ª§ª¬´́ ²§¦ ¬§¦ ¬·̄©�̄©ª° ²´
¥ ²©²¦ ¬ �ª§ª¬¦ ¬§° ©³�²¬° ¯µ �©̄µ ²§§¦ ¬̄ª® §²©é¦ ·² �¦ §°¥ ² �©̄�²©° �̄µò ̈! ¬· þª¬´ §¥ ª®® ¬̄°± ²©²³§²¦́ ¬«¥ ¯® ²̄© ¦ ¬�ª©°µ ©̄ª¬�̄°¥ ²©�©̄" ²·° «¦°¥ ³̄°ò ̈! ¬· þ# §«©¦°° ²¬ ª³°¥ ©̄¦ ÷ª°¦ ¬̄ þ$ò ̈! ¬· þîïëî

%ÁÀ½»&'()
*+,-./012234

8
4
1
0
6
9
8

6
5

Î 6878
å¿�Ï 9Þ Þ:;%å �åå̀<:�

X

Ê|�ÁÀÁ���|�|�~�
��~

ÂÅÂÄÆÂÄ ÆÇÈÆÂÄ

§æ¡¡¤©¡¦¡ �̈¦¥¤¡§ Æ ggbolhmglbha±mffgbbh°nomlénl
±l±ehe°lheejhbjehlneaÄ

fmo°agmjekmnoleomogegbkjmoµ ¹ml±eobdhmo°abo¶»b±o ¹
éØÆ ½ÃÉÃ ½éÃÅÅ· ¹°dhnō°ekbfnlnboabml±eobdhmo
°abogmo

amf²m̄e²mf²eamo°gmjnhhn̄mlnbo
jnjnō g

Å ggbolhmglbha±mffb®lmnoḿeff°e
gboalhdglnbojehknlno

bh°ehlb°bgdkeolmo°́nloeaal±
ekbonlbhnṓeff

°ealhdglnbo®µgbdolµb³amolmg
hdºeo²nhbokeolmf±emfl±

aeh²ngea¶éØÆ ½ÃÉÃ ½ÅÐÃé· g

-33-

Item #: 4.B. Soquel Creek Pump Station Plans.pdf



aeeobleÃ

}}~����������������������������������
������������

������}~����������}����� ���� � ¡¢ ���£
¤¥¦ §¨ ©ª«¦ ¬§¥ ª®® ¬̄°± ²³§²´ µ ©̄¶ ¬̄§° ©³·°¦ ¬̄³¬® ²§§¦̧ ¬²´ ª¬´̧ ²ª® ²¹́ ©̄¶ ¬̄§° ©³·°¦ ¬̄

º»¼½¾¿ÀÁÂÃÄÅÆ

Ç ÈÉÊÇ ËÈÌÍ
Î ÊÏÐ ÑÐ ÒÍÓ Ò

Ô ÕÖ ×Ö ØÙÚÛÖ ÜÝÞÄÃß¼àÀáâ¼½ÃºßÄ¼ÅÃ º»¼½¾¿¼ãÄÆÅ¼À¿ÀÁäÅ å½Áß¼¿¼ãÄÆÅ

æ ¯° ²çè¦ ¬¦́ ·ª° ²§§¦ ¬ª° ³©²§̄¬̄©¦ ¦ ¬ª®¦ §§³²̄µ́ ©ª«¦ ¬̄©® ª§° ©²é¦ §¦ ¬̄̄µ́ ©ª«¦ ¬
ê® ¯°̈ ª° ²ç
¶ ª¹́¦® ²æ ç̄
ëìí ª©·¥îïëì ðëî çñîêí
ò çóëëôõö ð¸ ª¬° ª¶ ©³÷¸ ª¬¦° ª°¦ ¬̄¦̈ §° ©¦ ·°óëëôõö ðôìëïøùô̧ ú̄³²®¶ ©²²û¤ ©ª¬§í ª¦ ¬óïø ð¶ü̈ó̧¥ ²²° §óôìëïøùô ý¨ ðëïî þ´ «

ÿ��� �� �
�àÀáâ¼½Ã¿ÄÀ¼½ÃáÀ��		Àá
¼� ¿ÁÃ¼

� Ò � ÈÍÈ�ÊË� ËÒ� Ê�É ÇÐ ËÊ�ÉÒË
ê® ¯°° ²±́ �ç¸ ³§ª¬¨ é̄²

ºáÅÃÀÁ½Ã�á �
Û�� ��

�¼�ã¼áÂ¿á½��¼ÅÃã ¤¥¦ §´ ·̄³�²¬° ª¬°́¥ ²¦́ ²ª§ª¬´́ ²§¦ ¬§¦ ¬·̄©�̄©ª° ²´
¥ ²©²¦ ¬ �ª§ª¬¦ ¬§° ©³�²¬° ¯µ �©̄µ ²§§¦ ¬̄ª® §²©é¦ ·² �¦ §°¥ ² �©̄�²©° �̄µò ̈! ¬· þª¬´ §¥ ª®® ¬̄°± ²©²³§²¦́ ¬«¥ ¯® ²̄© ¦ ¬�ª©°µ ©̄ª¬�̄°¥ ²©�©̄" ²·° «¦°¥ ³̄°ò ̈! ¬· þ# §«©¦°° ²¬ ª³°¥ ©̄¦ ÷ª°¦ ¬̄ þ$ò ̈! ¬· þîïëî

%ÁÀ½»&'()
*+,-./012234

8
4
1
0
6
9
8

6
5

Î 687è
å¿�Ï 9Þ Þ:;%å �åå̀<:�

Â×ÄÅÄ Ø¼éÇÈÆÄ ½ÂÇÃÄ

Ê�ÑaÁ�}¿ÁÁÒ�a
��Ê���|�~�a��¿
���ÀÁ���|�|�~�
��~

§æ¡¡¤©¡¦¡ �̈¦¥¤¡§ Æ g®mgīhbdo°ajhb²n°e°®µamolmg
hdºgbdolµamonlmlnbo

°nalhngl³hbkl±emjlbalhmoaknaa
nbo³mgnfnlµ ¹abcdefgheei

jdkjnōalmlnbo ¹ma ½®dnfla°mle°ÆféÂ ggbolhmglbha±mff³nef°
²ehn³µȩnalnō³nef°gbo°nlnboajh
nbhlbalmhlb³́bhimo°

obln³µl±e°nalhnglb³moµ°naghej
mognea g

Å gȩnalnō±mōnōfn̄±l³ņldhealb
hekmnoobla±b́o g

gbolhmglbha±mffhejmnhmo°¼bhh
ejfmge³ņldhea°mkm̄e°

°dhnōgboalhdglnbo g Ø gaeek ½ØÂÅ³bhoéjnjnōmo°²mf²eanoal
mffmlnbo g

Ã ggdlmo°hekb²el±eȩnalnōjnjem
aoegeaamhµlbnoalmff³gm g

® ° ½ØÂÆ

m ° ½ØÂÆ

-34-

Item #: 4.B. Soquel Creek Pump Station Plans.pdf



aeeobleÅ
}}~����������������������������������
������������

������}~����������}����� ���� � ¡¢ ���£
¤¥¦ §¨ ©ª«¦ ¬§¥ ª®® ¬̄°± ²³§²´ µ ©̄¶ ¬̄§° ©³·°¦ ¬̄³¬® ²§§¦̧ ¬²´ ª¬´̧ ²ª® ²¹́ ©̄¶ ¬̄§° ©³·°¦ ¬̄

º»¼½¾¿ÀÁÂÃÄÅÆ

Ç ÈÉÊÇ ËÈÌÍ
Î ÊÏÐ ÑÐ ÒÍÓ Ò

Ô ÕÖ ×Ö ØÙÚÛÖ ÜÝÞÄÃß¼àÀáâ¼½ÃºßÄ¼ÅÃ º»¼½¾¿¼ãÄÆÅ¼À¿ÀÁäÅ å½Áß¼¿¼ãÄÆÅ

æ ¯° ²çè¦ ¬¦́ ·ª° ²§§¦ ¬ª° ³©²§̄¬̄©¦ ¦ ¬ª®¦ §§³²̄µ́ ©ª«¦ ¬̄©® ª§° ©²é¦ §¦ ¬̄̄µ́ ©ª«¦ ¬
ê® ¯°̈ ª° ²ç
¶ ª¹́¦® ²æ ç̄
ëìí ª©·¥îïëì ðëî çñîêí
ò çóëëôõö ð¸ ª¬° ª¶ ©³÷¸ ª¬¦° ª°¦ ¬̄¦̈ §° ©¦ ·°óëëôõö ðôìëïøùô̧ ú̄³²®¶ ©²²û¤ ©ª¬§í ª¦ ¬óïø ð¶ü̈ó̧¥ ²²° §óôìëïøùô ý¨ ðõïë þ´ «

ÿ��� �� �
�àÀáâ¼½Ã¿ÄÀ¼½ÃáÀ��		Àá
¼� ¿ÁÃ¼

� Ò � ÈÍÈ�ÊË� ËÒ� Ê�É ÇÐ ËÊ�ÉÒË
ê® ¯°° ²±́ �ç¸ ³§ª¬¨ é̄²

ºáÅÃÀÁ½Ã�á �
Û�� ��

�¼�ã¼áÂ¿á½��¼ÅÃã ¤¥¦ §´ ·̄³�²¬° ª¬°́¥ ²¦́ ²ª§ª¬´́ ²§¦ ¬§¦ ¬·̄©�̄©ª° ²´
¥ ²©²¦ ¬ �ª§ª¬¦ ¬§° ©³�²¬° ¯µ �©̄µ ²§§¦ ¬̄ª® §²©é¦ ·² �¦ §°¥ ² �©̄�²©° �̄µò ̈! ¬· þª¬´ §¥ ª®® ¬̄°± ²©²³§²¦́ ¬«¥ ¯® ²̄© ¦ ¬�ª©°µ ©̄ª¬�̄°¥ ²©�©̄" ²·° «¦°¥ ³̄°ò ̈! ¬· þ# §«©¦°° ²¬ ª³°¥ ©̄¦ ÷ª°¦ ¬̄ þ$ò ̈! ¬· þîïëî

%ÁÀ½»&'()
*+,-./012234

8
4
1
0
6
9
8

6
5

Î 67̂8
å¿�Ï 9Þ Þ:;%å �åå̀<:�

Â×ÄÅÄ Ø¼éÇÈÆÄ ½ÂÇÃÄ

m ° ½ÆÂÅÊ�ÑaÁ�}¿ÁÁÒ�a
��Ê���|�~ÀÁ���|
�|�~ÊÁ}�|�~

§æ¡¡¤©¡¦¡ �̈¦¥¤¡§ Æ g®mgīhbdo°ajhb²n°e°®µamolmg
hdºgbdolµ

amonlmlnbo°nalhngl³hbkl±emjlba lhmoaknaanbo³mgnfnlµ ¹abcdefgheeijdkjnō almlnbo ¹ma ½®dnfla°mle°ÆféÂ ggbolhmglbh a±mff³nef°²ehn³µȩnalnō³nef°gb
o°nlnboa

jhnbhlbalmhlb³́bhimo°obln³µ
l±e°nalhngl

b³moµ°naghejmognea g Å gaeek ½ØÂÅ³bhoéjnjnōmo°²mf²ea noalmffmlnbo g
Â×ÄÅÄ Ø¼éÇÈÆÄ ½ÂÇÃÄ

® ° ½ÆÂÅÊ�ÑaÁ�}¿ÁÁÒ�a
��Ê���|�~ÀÁ���|
�|�~ÊÁ}�|�~

§¡d¤£¥¦¦¥¤¡§ Æ gaeglnboalµjngmfb³mff³bdhjdkj
a g

Å g³nef°jnjnō°beaoblkmlg±®mgī
hbdo°no

l±namhem gaeek ½ØÂÅ³bhj±blbab³ȩnalnō noalmffmlnbo

-35-

Item #: 4.B. Soquel Creek Pump Station Plans.pdf



ÓÔÕÔÔÖÖ×ØØ ÙÚ ÛÜÜ Ù ÝÛÜÜ ÖÞ× ØØ ßàáââãäåææßçáââßèáââßéáââêëìëëíîïððêêìëëêñìëëòóáòç

w�ytqss{tqq{
utypwqswvwztw�q

ô õ ö ÷ ø ÷ ù ö ú

��� ��� !"��� ûüýþüÿ�þÿüüþ) * + * , - . / -

� � � � � � � � � � 	
s9v::zp|wqp{qt


��
�
��� ABCDEFGHDIIH

sv[\q�wtqq] :\x:s{y{zvp
}}~����������������������������������
������������

������}~����������}����� ���� � ¡¢ ���£
¤¥¦ §¨ ©ª«¦ ¬§¥ ª®® ¬̄°± ²³§²´ µ ©̄¶ ¬̄§° ©³·°¦ ¬̄³¬® ²§§¦̧ ¬²´ ª¬´̧ ²ª® ²¹́ ©̄¶ ¬̄§° ©³·°¦ ¬̄

º»¼½¾¿ÀÁÂÃÄÅÆ

Ç ÈÉÊÇ ËÈÌÍ
Î ÊÏÐ ÑÐ ÒÍÓ Ò

Ô ÕÖ ×Ö ØÙÚÛÖ ÜÝÞÄÃß¼àÀáâ¼½ÃºßÄ¼ÅÃ º»¼½¾¿¼ãÄÆÅ¼À¿ÀÁäÅ å½Áß¼¿¼ãÄÆÅ

æ ¯° ²çè¦ ¬¦́ ·ª° ²§§¦ ¬ª° ³©²§̄¬̄©¦ ¦ ¬ª®¦ §§³²̄µ́ ©ª«¦ ¬̄©® ª§° ©²é¦ §¦ ¬̄̄µ́ ©ª«¦ ¬
ê® ¯°̈ ª° ²ç
¶ ª¹́¦® ²æ ç̄
ëìí ª©·¥îïëì ðëî çñîêí
ò çóëëôõö ð¸ ª¬° ª¶ ©³÷¸ ª¬¦° ª°¦ ¬̄¦̈ §° ©¦ ·°óëëôõö ðôìëïøùô̧ ú̄³²®¶ ©²²û¤ ©ª¬§í ª¦ ¬óïø ð¶ü̈ó̧¥ ²²° §óôìëïøùô ý¶ ðëïë þ´ «

ÿ��� �� �
�àÀáâ¼½Ã¿ÄÀ¼½ÃáÀ��		Àá
¼� ¿ÁÃ¼

� Ò � ÈÍÈ�ÊË� ËÒ� Ê�É ÇÐ ËÊ�ÉÒË
ê® ¯°° ²±́ �ç¸ ³§ª¬¨ é̄²

ºáÅÃÀÁ½Ã�á �
Û�� ��

�¼�ã¼áÂ¿á½��¼ÅÃã ¤¥¦ §´ ·̄³�²¬° ª¬°́¥ ²¦́ ²ª§ª¬´́ ²§¦ ¬§¦ ¬·̄©�̄©ª° ²´
¥ ²©²¦ ¬ �ª§ª¬¦ ¬§° ©³�²¬° ¯µ �©̄µ ²§§¦ ¬̄ª® §²©é¦ ·² �¦ §°¥ ² �©̄�²©° �̄µò ̈! ¬· þª¬´ §¥ ª®® ¬̄°± ²©²³§²¦́ ¬«¥ ¯® ²̄© ¦ ¬�ª©°µ ©̄ª¬�̄°¥ ²©�©̄" ²·° «¦°¥ ³̄°ò ̈! ¬· þ# §«©¦°° ²¬ ª³°¥ ©̄¦ ÷ª°¦ ¬̄ þ$ò ̈! ¬· þîïëî

%ÁÀ½»&'()
*+,-./012234

8
4
1
0
6
9
8

6
5

� 6878
å¿�Ï 9Þ Þ:;%å �åå̀<:�

X

Ê|�Á���~ �ÒÁ���� ��~À�Á���¿�¿�}
�~Ê�¿a}�|�~Á�ÊÁ
�Á~�Ê

~ ÂÆ×ÂÄéÂÄ ÆÇÈéÂÄ

§æ¡¡¤©¡¦¡ �̈¦¥¤¡§ Æ gaeelhÆÂÆl±hbd̄±lhÆÂÐ³bhgboa
lhdglnboj±manōmo°

lhm³³nggboalhmnola g

JKLM NOPQRP

§æ¡¡¤̈¡©¡¦ª mjjhb̧nkmlelge°dhnōjnjejdff®
mgi

mjjhb̧nkmlelge°dhnō±°°jnfbl
±bfe°hnff

mo°hemknōbjehmlnbo ¹mo°jnje³danō mjjhb̧nkmlelge°dhnōjdkjalmln
bo

kb°n³ngmlnboamo°lne ½no mjjhb̧nkmlelge°dhnōjnjejdff®
mgi

¶gfmheaalheel·

� ����

��������� ! "#$# % &'()
*++,-./0*1213245,/67 +/+2+5889*3:

*++,-./0*1213245,/67 +/+2+5889*3: *++,-./0*1213245,/67 ;44+/8-1;-824,/88*64 ,2*0/67-+2,*1/-6 < *64+/+2=5>/67 *++,-./0*1213245,/67 +50+>1*1/-60-4/=/3*1/-6> *641/2 ?/6

-36-

Item #: 4.B. Soquel Creek Pump Station Plans.pdf



@ABCCDEFGFF HIJKEFJLMNOPB@PO
@ABCFDQFGRF NSAOBM@LALTM@AOUNAUOP

V 3 ?VWX

C NYZFCC @YCCF
X 3 ?VW[

ÓÔÕÔÔ
\\]̂̂

\ _]̂̂
` abcc

\d]̂̂
efìëë

XWg;4+2>>=0
hig;4+2>>=0*64 h ?hg;4+2=-3-645/1>

>226-12[

=/92,-+1/3 j*5816- k[
lmnopqqroppr

JKLMNOPQRP
3-,>1,5315,26s[t[uvhX kWv 2sw[XViWu kut6s[t[uvXX kut 2sw[XViXW kvh 3-,>1,5315,2 +,-1231x2y>>0; 45,/673-6>1,531/-6

>226-12V x2yhig7,*j/1z>>

P{PONL|}Q

~����~���������~���

~����~���������~���

������
������
������
������
������
������
������
������
������
�������P�H�J@@�������

�P�H�J@@�����Z�
x2y7,-564*1 32612,8/62-=+/+2

� �� � � � � � � �� � � � �� � � � �  ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¥ ¦ ¦ §¨ ¦ © ª «ª ¬  �

@ST�PN�BM®P HIJLM¯°RRGFF @ABCEDHZGZI

@ABCCDC±GER �T¯BUSAMTGC

@ABCIDRHG±± �T¯BUSAMTGH

²³´µ¶·¸¸¹¸ º» ¼»½¾ @ABCFDIZGR� NTMMPNAAT�P�HIJ@@ LM¯R±GQR ��LPS¿¯POL�ÀA�P ¿P�A�T�A�P �P�HIJ@@1,*6>/1/-6 >1,5315,2

tÁÂtÁ;44 2./1+/1�P�HJ®B@���R� �P�CHJÃBAPO���±�

@ABCCDH±G�Z HIJKEFJLMNOPB@PO LM¯R±GQF

Ä ÅÆ Ç È É Ê Ë Ë Ì Í Ë ÎÏ ÐÏ Ñ Ò Ä @ST�PN�BM®P HIJLM¯°RCGR± @ABCIDHZGEZ

@ABCFD�HGIC EFJ@@�� LM¯R±G±R
Ó ÔÓÕ Ö × ØÙ ÚÛ ÜÛ Ý × Þ ßà á

�P�NBA¯

â ã ä å æ ç è é é ê ëì í ì î ï ð ñ ò ó ô õ ô ö ð ÷ ø ù ú>226-12i @ABCZDC±GHE HIJCCGHZûüPM¿ LM¯°�EGQE ¿O±ý¿OCCAOBM@LALTM �TOLþTMABSüPM¿ HIJLM¯°��GE� @ABCID�QGQZ

ÿ� � �� � � � � �� 	 
� �� � 
� �� � � �� �� � �� �� �� � ��

����� !"#!$%&$'#() *�+'&,)&-./&0&1(2.
!,(&3�4+56'7

8*5+5���*+*+9*5+5��5:;53 <=== >?@A >".B
CDE FG HIJE KLFD IMM KNOP QRFQS T NHU NKFO HRVOE NKRKM QFFWE LKQS IKSW QIM QSX NHU NKFO HRVOE NK

YZ[\]_̂̀abcde

f ghif jgkl
m ino po qlr q

s tu vu wxyzu {|}cb~[�_��[\bY~c[db YZ[\][̂�ced[_̂_̀�d �\̀~[[̂�ced

� NO Q��E KSE VIO QFFE LKIO RHQFNKNHE LE KIME FFRQNTS HIJE KLNHM IFO HQ�E FE NKNTS HIJE KL
�M NOG IO Q�
U ISXEM Q� N�
��� IHVD���� ��� �����
� ������� �W IKO IU HR�W IKEO IOE NKGE FO HE VO������ ��������W N�RQMU HQQ�C HIKF� IE K��� �U�G�WD QQO F�������� �U ����O NU ���� �S JL

�� ¡ ¢£ ¤
¥�_��[\b̂c_[\b�_¦§̈̈_�©[ª ^̀b[

« q¬  glg®ij¯ jq° i±h fo ji±hqj
�M NOO QSP ²�W RFIKG N�Q

Y�db_̀\b³� ´
zµ¶ ·¸

¹[º�[�â�\º»[db� CDE FS NVR¼QKO IKSOD QES QIFIKSS QFE LKFE KVNH½NHIO QS
D QHQE K ¾IFIKE KFO HR¼QKO NT ½HNT QFFE NKIM FQH�E VQ ¾E FOD Q ½HN½QHO ²NT�¿GÀ KV �IKS FD IMM KNOP QHQRFQSE KJD NM QNH E K½IHOT NHIK²NOD QH½HNÁ QVO JEOD NRO�¿GÀ KV �Â FJHEOO QK IROD NHE �IOE NK �Ã�¿GÀ KV �����

Ä̀_\ZÅÆÇÈ
ÉÊËÌÍÎÏÐÑÑÒ
Ó

8
4
1
0
6
9
8

6
5

Ô ÕÖ×Ø
�̂³Ù Ú} }ÛÜÄ� §��ÝÞÛ³

X

ßàáàâãâäåæçàßàáàâãçèé

é WiWÁhWÁ [gêhWÁ
WiWÁhWÁ [gêhWÁ
WtÁiÁ [gêiÁ

tÁÂtÁ;44 2./1+/1 >226-12X,2+8*3235,9 <75112, *64>/42ë*8:,20-j24 =-,+/+28/62/6>1*88*1/-6
ì í î ï ð ñ ò ó ôõ ö ÷ ø ù ú ù û üý þ þ ÿ � � � � � � � �� 	 
 =/92,-+1/3 j*5816- kh

�������� ����
>226-12h @ABCID�QGQZ HIJIZûüPM¿BM¿ HIJHHGZûüPM¿ M�CRC�±HZG�E P�QCEZREQGF±

[ 3 ?VWX

[ k3-61,*31-,>;*88 2.2,3/>22.1,2023*51/-6 ë;26ë-,:/67/61;2 j/3/6/1z-=-j2,;2*4 ë/,2>+2,+7�2 75/428/62> k h k3-61,*31-,>;*88+8*32 [g1;/3:>1228+8*12> *3,->>1;2ë/41;-= ë;*,=,-*4+,/-,1- >1*,1-=;44-+2,*1/-6> 1-0/1/7*12>211820261 45,/67;44-+2,*1/-6> k +8*12>>;*889232612,24 -j2,1;2;44*8/760261 ë/1;1;28-67264-=1;2 +8*12+2,+264/358*,1- 1;2;44*8/760261 k>22 >+23/=/3*1/-6>231/-6 [W ?[ khV k X k,2>1-,21;2>5,=*321- 1;22.1261-=-62=--1/6 2*3;4/,231/-6x[WÁÂ[WÁ 1-1*8y*=12,;44 -+2,*1/-6 k62ë*3 +*j20261+2,421*/8 u�3 ?VWX k3-6=-,01- 2./>1/67+*j20261 k i k3-61,*31-,>;*88,20-j2 +/+2*643-64531-, 3*>/67/6>1*8824j/*;44 ë;/3;/>6-1,2�5/,24=-, =-,320*/6*8/760261 =,-0*++,-./0*12>1* [i�vw1->1*[V�hW k V kx2ytg>2ë2,1-92,20-j24 *64,2+8*324/61;2 j/3/6/1z-=1;21,*6>/1/-6 >1,5315,21-=*3/8/1*12 3-6>1,531/-6 k 3-61,*31-,1-9z+*>> *88=8-ë>*>622424 < /63854/67,2>/4261/*8 8*12,*8=8-ë> k
[WÁ+2,0*62612*>20261 X 3 ?VW[

;-,/�-6*1*8
j2,1/3*8

-37-

Item #: 4.B. Soquel Creek Pump Station Plans.pdf



V 3 ?VWX

� � � � � [V�WW
[w�WW
[u�WW
[t�WW
[v�WW

hig;4+2>>=0*64 h ?hg;4+2=-3-645/1> ;445642,>-�5283,22:

�   ! " #  $
>226-12h%&'()(*'+

,-./0123004

[WÁ+2,0*6261 2*>20261

565789:;<

565789:;<

?wW?iW?hWWhWiWwWtW[WW

?wW?iW?hWWhWiWwWtW[WW

[i�VW[
V�WW[V�
VW[w�WW
[w�VW[
u�WW[u
�VW[t�W
W[t�VW
[v�WW[
v�VW

x2y7,-564*1 32612,8/62-=+/+2
>-�5283,22: IF=

tÁÂtÁ;44 2./1+/1

hig;4+2>>=0*64 h ?hg;4+2=-3-645/1> ;445642,>-�5283,22:

qpp>?@l ABCDEFo GoFEHmp>prnHmqEoFI qrnBJ KLCrFqrnBL KLC FMpomnGHNqrnrHFNHN@ qOF?NEFolmnoHrP
HJ®B@���R� CHJÃBAPO���±� H�J@@�����CF�

t 3 ?VWX
QRSTUVWX YZ[\]^_``a

����� !"#!$%&$'#() *�+'&,)&-./&0&1(2.
!,(&3�4+56'7

8*5+5���*+*+9*5+5��5:;53 <=== >?@A >".B
CDE FG HIJE KLFD IMM KNOP QRFQS T NHU NKFO HRVOE NKRKM QFFWE LKQS IKSW QIM QSX NHU NKFO HRVOE NK

YZ[\]_̂̀abcde

f ghif jgkl
m ino po qlr q

s tu vu wxyzu {|}cb~[�_��[\bY~c[db YZ[\][̂�ced[_̂_̀�d �\̀~[[̂�ced

� NO Q��E KSE VIO QFFE LKIO RHQFNKNHE LE KIME FFRQNTS HIJE KLNHM IFO HQ�E FE NKNTS HIJE KL
�M NOG IO Q�
U ISXEM Q� N�
��� IHVD���� ��� �����
� ������� �W IKO IU HR�W IKEO IOE NKGE FO HE VO������ ��������W N�RQMU HQQ�C HIKF� IE K��� �U�G�WD QQO F�������� �U ����O NU ���� �S JL

�� ¡ ¢£ ¤
¥�_��[\b̂c_[\b�_¦§̈̈_�©[ª ^̀b[

« q¬  glg®ij¯ jq° i±h fo ji±hqj
�M NOO QSP ²�W RFIKG N�Q

Y�db_̀\b³� ´
zµ¶ ·¸

¹[º�[�â�\º»[db� CDE FS NVR¼QKO IKSOD QES QIFIKSS QFE LKFE KVNH½NHIO QS
D QHQE K ¾IFIKE KFO HR¼QKO NT ½HNT QFFE NKIM FQH�E VQ ¾E FOD Q ½HN½QHO ²NT�¿GÀ KV �IKS FD IMM KNOP QHQRFQSE KJD NM QNH E K½IHOT NHIK²NOD QH½HNÁ QVO JEOD NRO�¿GÀ KV �Â FJHEOO QK IROD NHE �IOE NK �Ã�¿GÀ KV �����

Ä̀_\ZÅÆÇÈ
ÉÊËÌÍÎÏÐÑÑÒ
Ó

8
4
1
0
6
9
8

6
5

Ô ÕÖ×b
�̂³Ù Ú} }ÛÜÄ� §��ÝÞÛ³

X

ßàáàâãâäåæçàßàáàâãçèé

WiWÁhWÁ [gêhWÁ

cdefghijkledmnopqrlkkstduijvfrmqw

cdefghijkledmpopqr lkkstduijvfrmqx
y z { | } ~ ~ � | } } �

WiWÁhWÁ [gêhWÁ

�����������
�

[ k3-61,*31-,>;*882.2,3/>2 2.1,2023*51/-6ë;26 ë-,:/67/61;2j/3/6/1z-= -j2,;2*4ë/,2>+2,+7�2 75/428/62> k h k3-61,*31-,>;*88+8*32[g 1;/3:>1228+8*12>*3,->> 1;2ë/41;-=ë;*,=,-*4 +,/-,1->1*,1-=;44 -+2,*1/-6>1-0/1/7*12 >21182026145,/67;44 -+2,*1/-6> k+8*12>>;*88 9232612,24-j2,1;2;44 *8/760261ë/1;1;28-67 264-=1;2+8*12 +2,+264/358*,1-1;2;44 *8/760261 k>22 >+23/=/3*1/-6>231/-6[W ?[ khV k X k,2>1-,21;2>5,=*321-1;2 2.1261-=-62=--1/62*3; 4/,231/-6x[WÁÂ[WÁ1-1*8y *=12,;44-+2,*1/-6 k62ë *3+*j20261+2,421*/8 u�3 ?VWX k3-6=-,01-2./>1/67 +*j20261 k i k3-61,*31-,>;*88,20-j2 >>=0*64=-+/+2>*64 3-64531-,3*>/67 /6>1*8824j/*;44ë;/3;/> 6-1,2�5/,24=-,=-,32 0*/6*8/760261=,-0 *++,-./0*12>1*[i�vw1- >1*[V�hW k

qpp>?@l ABCDEFo GmnN>prnHmqEoFI qrnBJ KLCrFqrnBL KLC FMpomnGHNqrnrHFNHN@ qOF?NEFolmnoHrP

;-,/�-6*1*8*64j2,1/3*8
cdefghijkledmpopqr lkkstduijvfrmqx

-38-

Item #: 4.B. Soquel Creek Pump Station Plans.pdf



V 3 ?VWX

>1*êhh�Wt kiX >226-12i

hW�WW
h[�WW
hh�WW
hX�WWhX�hutÁÂtÁ;44 261,z+/1 >226-12h

=8-ë0212,,--0 >224ë73 ?[WV=-, +50+>1*1/-6>/12 3-6>1,531/-6

x2y[WÁ>*6/1*,z >2ë2,2*>20261

x2yhWÁ>*6/1*,z >2ë2,2*>20261

x2yVÁ>*6/1*,z >2ë2,2*>20261
hig;4+2>>=0*64 h ?hg;4+2=-3-645/1>

>226-12[
=/92,-+1/3 j*5816- kX[WÁ+2,0*6261 2*>20261

qOFGGHN@lpNrpo

�����������

*,jj*581[ 0 ?[Wh 6s[t[twhv khX 2sw[XwWwW khw 32612,*,jj*581

565789:;<

565789:;<

?wW?iW?hWWhWiWwWtW[WW

?wW?iW?hWWhWiWwWtW[WW

[v�VWh
W�WWhW
�VWh[�W
Wh[�VW
hh�WWhh
�VWhX�W
WhX�VW
hi�WW

x2y7,-564*1 32612,8/62-=+/+2

tÁÂtÁ;44 261,z+/1

hig;4+2=-,320*/6*64 h ?hg;4+2=-3-645/1> ;445642,>-�283,22:
�P�EJÃBAPO���CC� �P�QJPSPNBM¿APSP���CH� @ABHHDFRGIE HIJCCGHZûüPM¿ LM¯YCGQR ¿OCCý¿O±AOBM@LALTM @PPMTAPI=/92,-+1/3 j*5816- kX*,jj*581 >226-12[

t 3 ?VWX

>-�5283,22: IF=
� � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � �

����� !"#!$%&$'#() *�+'&,)&-./&0&1(2.
!,(&3�4+56'7

8*5+5���*+*+9*5+5��5:;53 <=== >?@A >".B
CDE FG HIJE KLFD IMM KNOP QRFQS T NHU NKFO HRVOE NKRKM QFFWE LKQS IKSW QIM QSX NHU NKFO HRVOE NK

YZ[\]_̂̀abcde

f ghif jgkl
m ino po qlr q

s tu vu wxyzu {|}cb~[�_��[\bY~c[db YZ[\][̂�ced[_̂_̀�d �\̀~[[̂�ced

� NO Q��E KSE VIO QFFE LKIO RHQFNKNHE LE KIME FFRQNTS HIJE KLNHM IFO HQ�E FE NKNTS HIJE KL
�M NOG IO Q�
U ISXEM Q� N�
��� IHVD���� ��� �����
� ������� �W IKO IU HR�W IKEO IOE NKGE FO HE VO������ ��������W N�RQMU HQQ�C HIKF� IE K��� �U�G�WD QQO F�������� �U ����O NU ���� �S JL

�� ¡ ¢£ ¤
¥�_��[\b̂c_[\b�_¦§̈̈_�©[ª ^̀b[

« q¬  glg®ij¯ jq° i±h fo ji±hqj
�M NOO QSP ²�W RFIKG N�Q

Y�db_̀\b³� ´
zµ¶ ·¸

¹[º�[�â�\º»[db� CDE FS NVR¼QKO IKSOD QES QIFIKSS QFE LKFE KVNH½NHIO QS
D QHQE K ¾IFIKE KFO HR¼QKO NT ½HNT QFFE NKIM FQH�E VQ ¾E FOD Q ½HN½QHO ²NT�¿GÀ KV �IKS FD IMM KNOP QHQRFQSE KJD NM QNH E K½IHOT NHIK²NOD QH½HNÁ QVO JEOD NRO�¿GÀ KV �Â FJHEOO QK IROD NHE �IOE NK �Ã�¿GÀ KV �����

Ä̀_\ZÅÆÇÈ
ÉÊËÌÍÎÏÐÑÑÒ
Ó

8
4
1
0
6
9
8

6
5

Ô ÕÖ×�
�̂³Ù Ú} }ÛÜÄ� §��ÝÞÛ³

X

�����������
�

[ k3-61,*31-,>;*88,20-j2>>=0*
64=-+/+2>*643-64531-,

3*>/67/6>1*8824j/*;44ë;/3;/>
6-1,2�5/,24=-,=-,32

0*/6*8/760261 <=,-0*++,-./0*12>1*hh�Wt1->1
*hX�Wu*64

=/88>+*32ë/1;7,-51 k h k3-61,*31-,>;*88+8*32[g1;/3:>
1228+8*12>*3,->>1;2

2.3*j*1/-6+*,:/678-1+,/-,1->
1*,1-=;44-+2,*1/-6>1-

0/1/7*12>21182026145,/67;44-
+2,*1/-6> k+8*12>>;*8892

32612,24-j2,1;2;44*8/760261
ë/1;1;28-67264-=1;2

+8*12+2,+264/358*,1-1;2;44*
8/760261 k>22>+23/=/3*1/-6

>231/-6[W ?[ khV k X k,2>1-,21;2>5,=*321-1;22.12
61-=-62=--1/62*3;

4/,231/-6x[WÁÂ[WÁ1-1*8y*=12,;4
4-+2,*1/-6 k62ë*3

+*j20261+2,421*/8u�3 ?VWX k3-6=-,01-2./>1/67+*j20261 k
i k>1*1/-6+/+/672.1264>1;,-57;*
,jj*581 k>224ë70 ?[Wh=-,

0-,2/6=-,0*1/-6 k

ßàáàâãçèé

WiWÁhWÁ [gêhWÁ

cdefghijkledmnopqrlkkstduijvfrmq� ßàáàâãâäåæçà

WiWÁhWÁ [gêhWÁ ;-,/�-6*1*8*64j2,1/3*8

-39-

Item #: 4.B. Soquel Creek Pump Station Plans.pdf



�����

� ¡¢¢�£��¤

>224ë73 ?[Wi=-,>>=0*64 =-3-645/1+8*6*64+,-=/82,28-3*12ë*12,0212, *649*3:=8-ë+,2j2612, 45,/673-6>1,531/-6*64 ,2+8*32/6:/64

tÁÂtÁ;44 261,z+/1 >226-12h
>226-12i

>226-12[62ë8-3*1/-6-= 0-6/1-,/67ë288 9z>3ë4
=/92,-+1/3 j*5816- kX/6>1*881z+2*35,9*6475112, *64j*882z75112,

h 3 ?VWh
[ 3 ?VWX

=8-ë0212,,--0 >224ë7>0 ?[Wh < > ?[W[*642 ?[Wh
*,jj*581 [ 0 ?[Whh 3 ?VWX

3-662311- x2yj*882z75112, [WÁ+2,0*6261 2*>20261
����� !"#!$%&$'#() *�+'&,)&-./&0&1(2.
!,(&3�4+56'7

8*5+5���*+*+9*5+5��5:;53 <=== >?@A >".B
CDE FG HIJE KLFD IMM KNOP QRFQS T NHU NKFO HRVOE NKRKM QFFWE LKQS IKSW QIM QSX NHU NKFO HRVOE NK

YZ[\]_̂̀abcde

f ghif jgkl
m ino po qlr q

s tu vu wxyzu {|}cb~[�_��[\bY~c[db YZ[\][̂�ced[_̂_̀�d �\̀~[[̂�ced

� NO Q��E KSE VIO QFFE LKIO RHQFNKNHE LE KIME FFRQNTS HIJE KLNHM IFO HQ�E FE NKNTS HIJE KL
�M NOG IO Q�
U ISXEM Q� N�
��� IHVD���� ��� �����
� ������� �W IKO IU HR�W IKEO IOE NKGE FO HE VO������ ��������W N�RQMU HQQ�C HIKF� IE K��� �U�G�WD QQO F�������� �U ���� �S JL

�� ¡ ¢£ ¤
¥�_��[\b̂c_[\b�_¦§̈̈_�©[ª ^̀b[

« q¬  glg®ij¯ jq° i±h fo ji±hqj
�M NOO QSP ²�W RFIKG N�Q

Y�db_̀\b³� ´
zµ¶ ·¸

¹[º�[�â�\º»[db� CDE FS NVR¼QKO IKSOD QES QIFIKSS QFE LKFE KVNH½NHIO QS
D QHQE K ¾IFIKE KFO HR¼QKO NT ½HNT QFFE NKIM FQH�E VQ ¾E FOD Q ½HN½QHO ²NT�¿GÀ KV �IKS FD IMM KNOP QHQRFQSE KJD NM QNH E K½IHOT NHIK²NOD QH½HNÁ QVO JEOD NRO�¿GÀ KV �Â FJHEOO QK IROD NHE �IOE NK �Ã�¿GÀ KV �����

Ä̀_\ZÅÆÇÈ
ÉÊËÌÍÎÏÐÑÑÒ
Ó

8
4
1
0
6
9
8

6
5

Ô ÕÖ× ¥
�̂³Ù Ú} }ÛÜÄ� §��ÝÞÛ³

X

¦æ§æçßæ̈àãçèé

WhWÁ[WÁ [gê[WÁ

�����������
�

[ k,2+8*61/67-=1,22>*64+8*61>*
64/6>1*88*1/-6-=

/,,/7*1/-6+/+/67*64j*8j2>/61;
/>*,2*>;*8892+2,=-,024 9z-1;2,> k3-61,*31-,>;*88/6>1*881-+>-/

8/68*64>3*+2
*,2*+2,1;2>+23/=/3*1/-6> k3-61,*31-,/>,2>+-6>/982=-, +8*61/67-=,/+*,/*61,22> k>224ë78 ?[W[ k

h k3-61,*31-,>;*88+8*32[g1;/3:>
1228+8*12>*3,->>1;2

2.3*j*1/-6+*,:/678-1+,/-,1->
1*,1-=;44-+2,*1/-6>1-

0/1/7*12>21182026145,/67;44-
+2,*1/-6> k+8*12>>;*8892

32612,24-j2,1;2;44*8/760261
ë/1;1;28-67264-=1;2

+8*12+2,+264/358*,1-1;2;44*
8/760261 k>22

>+23/=/3*1/-6>231/-6[W ?[ khV k X k,2>1-,21;2>5,=*321-1;22.12
61-=-62=--1/62*3;

4/,231/-6x[WÁÂ[WÁ1-1*8y*=12,;4
4-+2,*1/-6 k62ë*3

+*j20261+2,421*/8u�3 ?VWX k3-6=-,01-2./>1/67+*j20261 k
i k>1*1/-6+/+/672.1264>1;,-57;*
,jj*581 k>224ë70 ?[Wh

=-,0-,2/6=-,0*1/-6 k V k*6z;*64/3*++24+*,:/67>+*32*=
=231249z1;2

3-6>1,531/-6>;*8892,2+8*324/
6:/64+2,421*/8w�3 ?VWX k

-40-

Item #: 4.B. Soquel Creek Pump Station Plans.pdf



1 
 

Soquel Creek Force Main Replacement Project 

#14-096 

Coastal Permit Findings 

 
FINDINGS 
 
A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
 
 Zoning Ordinance and General Plan 

The project secures the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan by replacing a 
vital utility line (sewer line force main) that is in need of replacement in order to prevent leaks 
and provide service to the city’s existing uses. 

 
Local Coastal Plan  
 
D. Findings Required. A coastal permit shall be granted only upon adoption of specific 
written factual findings supporting the conclusion that the proposed development 
conforms to the certified Local Coastal Program, including, but not limited to: 
 

 The proposed development conforms to the City’s certified Local Coastal Plan (LCP). 
The specific, factual findings, as per CMC Section 17.46.090 (D) are as follows:  

 
(D) (2) Require Project-Specific Findings. In determining any requirement for public 
access, including the type of access and character of use, the city shall evaluate and 
document in written findings the factors identified in subsections (D) (2) (a) through (e), 
to the extent applicable. The findings shall explain the basis for the conclusions and 
decisions of the city and shall be supported by substantial evidence in the record. If an 
access dedication is required as a condition of approval, the findings shall explain how 
the adverse effects which have been identified will be alleviated or mitigated by the 
dedication. As used in this section, “cumulative effect” means the effect of the 
individual project in combination with the effects of past projects, other current 
projects, and probable future projects, including development allowed under applicable 
planning and zoning. 

 
(D) (2) (a) Project Effects on Demand for Access and Recreation. Identification of 
existing and open public access and coastal recreation areas and facilities in the 
regional and local vicinity of the development. Analysis of the project’s effects upon 
existing public access and recreation opportunities. Analysis of the project’s 
cumulative effects upon the use and capacity of the identified access and recreation 
opportunities, including public tidelands and beach resources, and upon the capacity 
of major coastal roads from subdivision, intensification or cumulative build-out. 
Projection for the anticipated demand and need for increased coastal access and 
recreation opportunities for the public. Analysis of the contribution of the project’s 
cumulative effects to any such projected increase. Description of the physical 
characteristics of the site and its proximity to the sea, tideland viewing points, upland 
recreation areas, and trail linkages to tidelands or recreation areas. Analysis of the 
importance and potential of the site, because of its location or other characteristics, for 
creating, preserving or enhancing public access to tidelands or public recreation 
opportunities;  
 

 Public access and recreation will not impacted. 

-41-

Item #: 4.B. Soquel Creek Pump Station Coastal Findings.pdf



2 
 

 

(D) (2) (b) Shoreline Processes. Description of the existing shoreline conditions, 
including beach profile, accessibility and usability of the beach, history of erosion or 
accretion, character and sources of sand, wave and sand movement, presence of 
shoreline protective structures, location of the line of mean high tide during the season 
when the beach is at its narrowest (generally during the late winter) and the proximity of 
that line to existing structures, and any other factors which substantially characterize 
or affect the shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to 
shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to shoreline 
processes and beach profile unrelated to the proposed development. Description and 
analysis of any reasonably likely changes, attributable to the primary and cumulative 
effects of the project, to: wave and sand movement affecting beaches in the vicinity of 
the project; the profile of the beach; the character, extent, accessibility and usability of 
the beach; and any other factors which characterize or affect beaches in the vicinity. 
Analysis of the effect of any identified changes of the project, alone or in combination 
with other anticipated changes, will have upon the ability of the public to use public 
tidelands and shoreline recreation areas; 
 

 No portion of the project is located along the shoreline or beach.  The purpose of the 
project is to replace an existing sewer lines. 

 
(D) (2) (c) Historic Public Use. Evidence of use of the site by members of the general 
public for a continuous five-year period (such use may be seasonal). Evidence of the 
type and character of use made by the public (vertical, lateral, blufftop, etc., and for 
passive and/or active recreational use, etc.). Identification of any agency (or person) 
who has maintained and/or improved the area subject to historic public use and the 
nature of the maintenance performed and improvements made. Identification of the 
record owner of the area historically used by the public and any attempts by the owner 
to prohibit public use of the area, including the success or failure of those attempts. 
Description of the potential for adverse impact on public use of the area from the 
proposed development (including but not limited to, creation of physical or 
psychological impediments to public use);  
 

 The proposed project will be within property owned by the Santa Cruz County 
Sanitation District, City owned parcels of land, and the city owned right-of-ways.   

(D)  (2) (d) Physical Obstructions. Description of any physical aspects of the 
development which block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the 
tidelands, public recreation areas, or other public coastal resources or to see the 
shoreline; 

 While temporary delays will occur on certain city streets, the project will not impede the 
ability of the public to access the shoreline. 

 
 (D) (2) (e) Other Adverse Impacts on Access and Recreation. Description of the 
development’s physical proximity and relationship to the shoreline and any public 
recreation area. Analysis of the extent of which buildings, walls, signs, streets or other 
aspects of the development, individually or cumulatively, are likely to diminish the 
public’s use of tidelands or lands committed to public recreation. Description of any 
alteration of the aesthetic, visual or recreational value of public use areas, and of any 
diminution of the quality or amount of recreational use of public lands which may be 
attributable to the individual or cumulative effects of the development.    
 

-42-

Item #: 4.B. Soquel Creek Pump Station Coastal Findings.pdf



3 
 

 While temporary delays will occur on certain city streets, the project will not impede the 
ability of the public to access the shoreline. 

  
(D) (3) (a – c) Required Findings for Public Access Exceptions. Any determination that 
one of the exceptions of subsection (F) (2) applies to a development shall be supported 
by written findings of fact, analysis and conclusions which address all of the following: 

a. The type of access potentially applicable to the site involved (vertical, lateral, 
bluff top, etc.) and its location in relation to the fragile coastal resource to be protected, 
the agricultural use, the public safety concern, or the military facility which is the basis 
for the exception, as applicable; 

b. Unavailability of any mitigating measures to manage the type, character, 
intensity, hours, season or location of such use so that agricultural resources, fragile 
coastal resources, public safety, or military security, as applicable, are protected; 

c. Ability of the public, through another reasonable means, to reach the same area 
of public tidelands as would be made accessible by an access way on the subject land. 

 The project is not requesting a Public Access Exception, therefore these findings do 
not apply 

(D) (4) (a – f) Findings for Management Plan Conditions. Written findings in support of a 
condition requiring a management plan for regulating the time and manner or character 
of public access use must address the following factors, as applicable: 

a. Identification and protection of specific habitat values including the reasons 
supporting the conclusions that such values must be protected by limiting the hours, 
seasons, or character of public use; 

 b. Topographic constraints of the development site; 

 c. Recreational needs of the public; 

 d. Rights of privacy of the landowner which could not be mitigated by setting the 
project back from the access way or otherwise conditioning the development; 

e. The requirements of the possible accepting agency, if an offer of dedication is 
the mechanism for securing public access; 

f. Feasibility of adequate setbacks, fencing, landscaping, and other methods as 
part of a management plan to regulate public use. 

 No Management Plan is required; therefore these findings do not apply 
 

(D) (5)  Project complies with public access requirements, including submittal of 
appropriate legal documents to ensure the right of public access whenever, and as, 
required by the certified land use plan and Section 17.46.010 (coastal access 
requirements); 
 

 No legal documents to ensure public access rights  are required for the proposed 

-43-

Item #: 4.B. Soquel Creek Pump Station Coastal Findings.pdf



4 
 

project 
  

(D) (6) Project complies with visitor-serving and recreational use policies;  
  

Policy 17, Pg. 15 of the 1989 City General Plan, states that, “Areas designated as visitor 
serving and/or recreational shall be reserved for visitor support services or recreational 
uses. Permissible uses include, but are not limited to hotels, motels, hostels, 
campgrounds, food and drink service establishments, public facilities, public beaches, 
public recreation areas or parks, and related rental and retail establishments. 
Residential uses are also permitted on dual designated visitor-serving/residential 
parcels; specifically, a portion of the El Salto Resort, and in the Village area. 
Development can be accomplished through private or public means”. 
 

 The project complies with visitor-serving and recreational use policies in that it 
replacing and upgrading an existing public facility that provides utility service to existing 
visitor serving and/or recreational uses. 

 
(D) (7)  Project complies with applicable standards and requirements for provision of 
public and private parking, pedestrian access, alternate means of transportation and/or 
traffic improvements; 
 

 The project will not permanently affect public or private parking, pedestrian access, or 
alternate mean of transportation as the construction will be temporary with nearly all of 
the resulting infrastructure being located underground. 

 
(D) (8)  Review of project design, site plan, signing, lighting, landscaping, etc., by the 
city’s architectural and site review committee, and compliance with adopted design 
guidelines and standards, and review committee recommendations; 
 

 The project was reviewed by the City Public Works Director, as the majority of the work will 
be taking place underground within City owned property and the City of Capitola right of 
way.  The work in the right of way will meet the applied street design guidelines and 
standards. 

  
(D) (9) Project complies with LCP policies regarding protection of public landmarks, 
protection or provision of public views; and shall not block or detract from public views 
to and along Capitola’s shoreline; 

 

 No public landmarks are affected by the project.  Impacts on views are temporary, limited 
to the presence of construction equipment and disturbance during work, as the 
improvements are largely underground.  Therefore, the project will not block or detract 
from public views to and along Capitola’s shoreline. 

  
(D) (10) Demonstrated availability and adequacy of water and sewer services; 
 

 The project is replacement of an existing sewer service, therefore this finding does not 
apply. 

 
(D) (11) Provisions of minimum water flow rates and fire response times;  
 

 The project is replacement of an existing sewer service, therefore this finding does not 
apply. 

 

-44-

Item #: 4.B. Soquel Creek Pump Station Coastal Findings.pdf



5 
 

(D) (12) Project complies with water and energy conservation standards; 
 

 The project is replacement of an existing sewer service, therefore this finding does not 
apply. 

 
(D) (13) Provision of park dedication, school impact, and other fees as may be required;  
 

 The project is replacement of an existing sewer service, therefore this finding does not 
apply.  

 
(D) (14) Project complies with coastal housing policies, and applicable ordinances 
including condominium conversion and mobile home ordinances; 

 

 The project is replacement of an existing sewer service, therefore this finding does not 
apply. 

 
(D) (15) Project complies with natural resource, habitat, and archaeological protection 
policies;  
 

 A Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared and will be adopted by the applicant.  
The proposed mitigation measures ensure that the project complies with the natural 
resource, habitat and archaeological protection policies. 

 
(D) (16) Project complies with Monarch butterfly habitat protection policies; 

 

 A Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared and found that the project site does 
not support the habitat suitable for overwintering by monarch butterflies.   
 

(D) (17) Project provides drainage and erosion and control measures to protect marine, 
stream, and wetland water quality from urban runoff and erosion; 
 

 The project will comply with all applicable erosion control measures. 
 
(D) (18) Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professional for 
projects in seismic areas, geologically unstable areas, or coastal bluffs, and project 
complies with hazard protection policies including provision of appropriate setbacks 
and mitigation measures; 
 

 The project complies with hazard protection policies and applies mitigation measures. 
 
(D) (19) All other geological, flood and fire hazards are accounted for and mitigated in 
the project design; 
 

 The project is located underground and will not be a cause for a fire hazard. 
   
(D) (20) Project complies with shoreline structure policies; 
  

 The proposed development is not located on the shoreline and therefore does not require 
compliance with shoreline structure policies. 

 
(D) (21) The uses proposed are consistent with the permitted or conditional uses of the 
zoning district in which the project is located; 

-45-

Item #: 4.B. Soquel Creek Pump Station Coastal Findings.pdf



6 
 

 

 The project is replacement of an existing sewer service, therefore this finding does not 
apply.  

 
(D) (22) Conformance to requirements of all other city ordinances, zoning requirements, 
and project review procedures; 
 

 The project conforms to the requirements of all city ordinances, zoning requirements and 
project development review and development procedures. 

 
(D) (23) Project complies with the Capitola parking permit program as follows:  
 

 The project is replacement of an existing sewer service, therefore this finding does not 
apply.  

 
B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
 

The project involves replacement of an existing sewer service that will be placed underground, 
therefore the character and integrity of the neighborhood will be maintained. 

 

C. A Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared and adopted for this project based 

upon the completion of an Initial Study. 
 
 An Initial Study was prepared and circulated per CEQA requirements, and a Mitigated 

Negative Declaration with mitigation measures addressing potential impacts will be adopted 
based on the determination that the project will not have a significant effect on the 
environment.   

 

-46-

Item #: 4.B. Soquel Creek Pump Station Coastal Findings.pdf



 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T 
 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  JULY 17th, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: 1440 41st AVENUE        #14-075        APN: 034-111-50 

Amendment to Master Sign Program (Four Starr Center) to allow an additional Verizon 
sign on the building located at 1440 41st Avenue in the CC (Community Commercial) 
zoning district.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone, but does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit. 

  Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
  Property Owner: Richard Starr 
  Representative: Chris Merrell (Northwest Signs), filed: 5/20/14 
  
APPLICANT PROPOSAL 
The applicant has submitted an amendment to the Master Sign Program (MSP) at the existing 
commercial plaza located at 1440 41st Avenue in the CC (Community Commercial) zoning district. 
The proposed amendment is to allow tenants who occupy more than one suite to have one wall sign 
per suite, as long as they are located in one of the two suites that front 41st Avenue. Verizon has 
previously installed one wall sign on the south-western side of their building. Verizon is now proposing 
to place an additional sign on the west side of the building. The additional wall sign requires an 
amendment to the MSP. The proposed amendment to the MSP is consistent with the General Plan 
and Zoning Ordinance. 
 
DISCUSSION 
Zoning Ordinance §17.57.080 outlines the process for adopting a MSP for multi-tenant developments.  
A MSP establishes the allowed materials, letter style, height, color and illumination of signs for multi-
tenant buildings. A MSP is approved by the Planning Commission, with subsequent approvals 
administered by the Community Development Director or his designee for signs which comply with the 
program.   
 
There is an existing MSP for the Four Starr Center located at 1440 41st Avenue.  (Attachment C) The 
current MSP requires that each tenant be identified through a single sign with individually illuminated 
letters. The applicant is attempting to amend the Four Star Center MSP to allow for a tenant to erect 
an additional wall sign if the tenant expands their business into one of the corner units adjacent to 41st 
Avenue, as follows: 

“Tenants on end-cap spaces facing 41st Avenue who expand their premises into contiguous 
adjacent units may be permitted, at Landlord’s sole discretion, to have one additional sign on 
the 41st Avenue side. Such signs shall meet the requirements and specifications set forth 
herein.” –C (Attachment C) 

 
 

-47-

Item #: 5.A. 1440 41st Avenue MSP Amendment.pdf



 

The owner of the multi-tenant commercial building is proposing to amend the master sign program to 
meet the requests of an existing tenant, Verizon Wireless, to allow for the corner units along 41st 
Avenue to be allowed 2 signs. In addition to the Verizon location, there is one other unit within the 
Four Starr Center that faces 41st Avenue which, if expanded, would qualify for the new amendment in 
the MSP to allow for a second wall sign.  
 
Verizon has recently expanded into the adjacent “Little Caesars” restaurant, which is west of the 
previously located “Verizon” store and is adjacent to 41st Avenue. Verizon currently has a 10 square 
foot wall sign on the diagonal south-western side of the building. Verizon submitted a sign application 
to the Community Development Department on May 20th, 2014, which included a proposal for one 
additional 10 square foot flush-mounted sign to be located on the western wall (Attachment A). The 
new sign will contain the Verizon name and logo, matching the existing sign. The lettering will be 
front-lit L.E.D. channel letters that are 8.4 inches in height. The Verizon logo is proposed to be 15 
inches in height, which is the maximum allowable height for sign elements in the Four Starr Center.  
 
Staff had concerns with the original proposal due to the proposed placement of the second  sign 
directly adjacent to the installed wall sign.  This layout  would clutter the front façade of the building, 
facing 41st Avenue. Due to this, staff could not support the proposal. The applicant has since modified 
the proposal to separate the two signs. The updated plans propose that one sign be located on the 
south side of the building, facing the parking lot, and the other remain on the diagonal south-west 
side, facing 41st Avenue. (Attachment B)  
 
To clarify the allowed placement of the signs within the MSP, staff suggest adding the following 
underlined  wording of the amended portion of the MSP to say, “Tenants on end-cap spaces facing 
41st Avenue who expand their premises into contiguous adjacent units may be permitted, at 
Landlord’s sole discretion, to have one additional sign on the 41st Avenue side. The sign along 41st 
Avenue must be oriented on the diagonal elevation facing 41st Avenue.  The second sign must be 
located in the original location above the door to the second suite.   Such signs shall meet the 
requirements and specifications set forth herein.” 
 
ANALYSIS 
Zoning Ordinance §17.57.070 contains exceptions for signage that allow for a business to erect an 
additional sign, as follows:  

“Each business shall be permitted only one wall sign, except that: 
a. Businesses which are located adjacent to two streets (corner) shall be permitted one 
additional wall sign, to face the second adjacent street if the business is not identified on a 
monument sign. 
b. Additional wall signs may be allowed under a master sign program.” 

The project is not located at an intersection of two streets; however, the property is positioned so that 
one wall faces 41st Avenue and the other wall faces the parking lot of the Four Starr Center. 
Additionally, the Verizon store is not identified on a monument sign.  
  
CEQA 
This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California Environmental Quality Act 
and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations. The proposed 
project involves an amendment to the master sign program for an existing commercial space. No 
adverse environmental impacts were discovered during project review by either the Planning 
Department Staff or the Planning Commission.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve project application #14-075 based on the 
following Conditions and Findings for Approval. 
 

-48-

Item #: 5.A. 1440 41st Avenue MSP Amendment.pdf



 

 
 
CONDITIONS  
1.  All future signs at 1440 41st Avenue shall comply with the Master Sign Program. Individual sign 

permits may be issued by the Community Development Director or designee.   
 

2.  Prior to installation of a new sign, the applicant must obtain a permit from the Community 
Development Department and Building Department.   
 

3.  Prior to operation of a new business, the applicant shall obtain a business license from the City of 
Capitola. 

 
4.  Part ‘C’ of the Four Starr Center’s MSP shall be amended to say, “Tenants on end-cap spaces 

facing 41st Avenue who expand their premises into contiguous adjacent units may be permitted, at 
Landlord’s sole discretion, to have one additional sign on the 41st Avenue side. The sign along 41st 
Avenue must be oriented on the diagonal elevation facing 41st Avenue.  The second sign must be 
located in the original location above the door to the second suite. Such signs shall meet the 
requirements and specifications set forth herein.” 

 
FINDINGS 
A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 
Planning Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the application and determined 
that the proposed Master Sign Program amendment is allowed in the CC Zoning District.  
Future sign applications will comply with the requirements of the Master Sign Program.  
Conditions of approval have been included to ensure that future signs for the commercial 
suites are consistent with the Master Sign Program, Zoning Ordinance, and General Plan. 
 

B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood.   
Planning Department Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the project and 
determined that the amended Master Sign Program complements the building form.  The MSP 
establishes requirements for future signs that will maintain the character and integrity of this 
commercial center within the City of Capitola. Conditions of approval have been included to 
carry out these objectives. 

 
C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California 

Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 
The proposed project involves signs for an existing commercial space. No adverse 
environmental impacts were discovered during project review by either the Planning 
Department Staff or the Planning Commission. 

 
Report Prepared By:  Ryan Safty, Assistant Planner 
 
Attachment A – Original Verizon Project Plans 
Attachment B – Updated Verizon Project Plans 
Attachment B – Redlined Master Sign Program 
 
 
 
 
 

-49-

Item #: 5.A. 1440 41st Avenue MSP Amendment.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-50-



PROJECT# 130466 1440 41st Avenue, Suite B,Capitola, CA95010

•ver'ZOnwireless

r·-··-·--·-·-··-;;·-·--;;·~·~;~··~·~-·I
" II
II "
:: GCApproval DAT~E "

II LlAPprov~DA 1\1 '-II I"'"
'I II
:: Customer Approval DAT~ ::

'. I't~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~J

-51-

Item
 #: 5.A

. 1440 41st A
ven

u
e O

rig
in

al P
lan

.p
d

f



II.

B. SignSpecs: 4
LED Channel LettersetJ
Flush Mounted

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

1440 41st Avenue, Suite 8, Capitola, CA 95010 •ver'ZOnwireless

-52-

Item
 #: 5.A

. 1440 41st A
ven

u
e O

rig
in

al P
lan

.p
d

f



WhIte Ac.ryl1c.

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Remove existing signs

.t .
.-

t..:

96.50 in
(8 ft - 0 112 in)

~.

15.00 in
(1 ft - 3 in)

8.375 in @[JD
i

r···········--;·-·--:;;;·~····---···~·III II
II II
I: GCApproval DAT~ II

Ii LLAPP~~2ijII(
II II
II II
:: CustomerApproval DATE ::
II IIt~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~l:r-_ .. _-

**THIS SIGN WILL REQUIRE AN AMENDMENTTO THE MASTER SIGN PLAN**

,I. • I-

',' 1171 Tower Rd. Project No,
IDE N TIT I ::;' ~(hi'l\JlIlbur~l, 1l(.OI73 ),':' -:;'

,,0: 847.101.0510 " Oriq. Draft:
RES 0 U R C E S JCCF:847,301.05IS'

ideasJ'Ndel1titi.nei Page Rev:

:New layout-
Lawrence Slcher

144041 st Avenue, Suite 8, Capitola, CA 95010

8obCotton

130466

02119/2013

009

•ver'ZOnwireless

-53-

Item
 #: 5.A

. 1440 41st A
ven

u
e O

rig
in

al P
lan

.p
d

f



White Acrylk

NfA

NfA

NfA

NlA

NfA

o
W@[lO @[JD

. . • J

I·-·--···-··-····-;·;··~-~~···~····-··~:: :: 1l\II GCApproval DATE II \
" ~-".AII , II,

:: LLAPprova~ ~::
II II
II II
:: Customer Approval " DATE___ ::
II IIL~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~:~J

i<oIS" ..;

Mounting: Typical: 3/8" Anchor Bolts

Face:3f16"Whlte Acrylic (Z to be Red)

Trim: I" Black Jewelite

LED:White illumination strips (Z to be Red LEDs)

Backs:.063 Aluminum

Letterset to be supplied with a minimum of
5 ft of electrical run
Returns: .040 Black Aluminum
Bottom to have 1/4" Diameter Weep Holes
Disconnect Switch added to "left Most" Letter
(Controls Entire Letterset)

"Note: All fasteners to be non-ferrous and all penetrations
shall be sealed water tight

Power Supply:
120v System: Typical: Behind Wall

Front-Lit L.ED Channel Letter - Flush Mount
TYPICAL - Section Detail

,.._.,
I I, I"

I 0 E N TIT I 1171ToWN Rd. Project No
", h,IL!iltbW<I, II I,O!?;

RES 0 U R C E S 0: 847.301.0510 Orig. Draft:
F: 847.301.0518
ideasesidentiti.net Page Rev:

,:Newlogo
~

•ver'ZOnwireless
144041't Avenue, Suite B,Capitola, CA 9S010130466

02119/2013 Bob Cotton

Lawrence Skher008

-54-

Item
 #: 5.A

. 1440 41st A
ven

u
e O

rig
in

al P
lan

.p
d

f



V
E

R
IZ

O
N

 S
IG

N
A

G
E

 P
A

C
K

A
G

E

1
4

4
0

 4
1

st
 A

v
e

n
u

e
, 

S
u

it
e

 B
, 

C
a

p
it

o
la

, 
C

A
 9

5
0

1
0

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 #
 1

3
0

4
6

6

-55-

Item #: 5.A. 1440 41st Avenue Revised Final Plan.pdf



A
E

R
IA

L
 O

V
E

R
V

IE
W

 O
F

 S
T

O
R

E
 w

/ 
M

A
JO

R
 R

O
A

D
 I

N
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

S

B
IR

D
S

 E
Y

E
 V

IE
W

A
. 

S
id

e
 E

le
v

a
ti

o
n

:
 

   
  L

E
D

 C
h

a
n

n
e

l L
e

tt
e

rs
e

t/

   
  F

lu
sh

 M
o

u
n

te
d

B
. 

 S
ig

n
 S

p
e

cs
: 

   
  L

E
D

 C
h

a
n

n
e

l L
e

tt
e

rs
e

t/

   
  F

lu
sh

 M
o

u
n

te
d

C
O

N
T

E
N

T
S

 •
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
P

G
.

S
IG

N
 L

E
G

E
N

D
 •

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 S
ig

n
a

g
e

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

3
 4

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o

: 

O
ri

g
. D

ra
ft

:

P
a

g
e

 R
e

v
:

P
ro

j. 
Lo

ca
ti

o
n

: 

P
ro

j. 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r:

S
a

le
s 

R
e

p
:

P R O J E C T

T
h

is
 s

ig
n

 d
e

si
g

n
 is

 e
xc

lu
si

v
e

 p
ro

p
e

rt
y

 o
f I

d
e

n
ti

ti
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s,

 L
T

D
., 

a
n

d
 is

 t
h

e
 r

e
su

lt
 

o
f 

th
e

 o
ri

g
in

a
l a

n
d

 c
re

a
ti

v
e

 w
o

rk
 o

f 
it

’s
 e

m
p

lo
ye

e
s.

 T
h

is
 d

ra
w

in
g

 is
 s

u
b

m
it

te
d

 t
o

 

th
e

 
cu

st
o

m
e

r 
fo

r 
th

e
 

so
le

 
p

u
rp

o
se

 
o

f 
p

u
rc

h
a

se
 

o
f 

th
e

 
d

e
si

g
n

 
o

r 
si

g
n

a
g

e
 

m
a

n
u

fa
ct

u
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
is

 d
e

si
g

n
, b

y
 Id

e
n

ti
ti

 R
e

so
u

rc
e

s,
 L

T
D

. D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 t
o

 o
r 

u
se

 o
f 

th
is

 s
ig

n
 d

e
si

g
n

 b
y

 a
n

yo
n

e
 o

u
ts

id
e

 o
f 

th
e

 c
u

st
o

m
e

r’
s 

o
rg

a
n

iz
a

ti
o

n
, 

w
it

h
o

u
t 

e
xp

re
ss

e
d

, w
ri

tt
e

n
 a

u
th

o
ri

za
ti

o
n

 b
y

 Id
e

n
ti

ti
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s,

 L
T

D
. i

s 
p

ro
h

ib
it

e
d

.

S
ca

le
:

S
ch

a
u

m
b

u
rg

, I
L

 6
0

1
7

3

1
1

7
1

 T
o

w
e

r 
R

d
.

O
:  

8
4

7
.3

0
1

.0
5

1
0

id
e

a
s@

id
e

n
ti

ti
.n

e
t

F
:  

8
4

7
.3

0
1

.0
5

1
8

0
0

4

N
T

S
R

e
v

is
io

n
 A

rt
: S

a
ra

h

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 S
C

O
P

E
 O

F
 W

O
R

K

S
.O

.W
.

R
e

v
is

io
n

 D
a

te
:

R
e

v
. 

D
e

ta
il

s:
06

/2
7/

13

L
a

w
re

n
ce

 S
Ic

h
e

r

1
4

4
0

 4
1

st
 A

v
e

n
u

e
, S

u
it

e
 B

, C
a

p
it

o
la

, C
A

 9
5

0
1

0

0
2

/1
9

/2
0

1
3

1
3

0
4

6
6

B
o

b
 C

o
tt

o
n

D
e

si
g

n
e

r:
 S

a
ra

h
Co

nt
en

ts
 U

pd
at

ed

-56-

Item #: 5.A. 1440 41st Avenue Revised Final Plan.pdf



P
ro

je
ct

 N
o

: 

O
ri

g
. D

ra
ft

:

P
a

g
e

 R
e

v
:

P
ro

j. 
Lo

ca
ti

o
n

: 

P
ro

j. 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r:

S
a

le
s 

R
e

p
:

P R O J E C T

T
h

is
 s

ig
n

 d
e

si
g

n
 is

 e
xc

lu
si

v
e

 p
ro

p
e

rt
y

 o
f I

d
e

n
ti

ti
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s,

 L
T

D
., 

a
n

d
 is

 t
h

e
 r

e
su

lt
 

o
f 

th
e

 o
ri

g
in

a
l a

n
d

 c
re

a
ti

v
e

 w
o

rk
 o

f 
it

’s
 e

m
p

lo
ye

e
s.

 T
h

is
 d

ra
w

in
g

 is
 s

u
b

m
it

te
d

 t
o

 

th
e

 
cu

st
o

m
e

r 
fo

r 
th

e
 

so
le

 
p

u
rp

o
se

 
o

f 
p

u
rc

h
a

se
 

o
f 

th
e

 
d

e
si

g
n

 
o

r 
si

g
n

a
g

e
 

m
a

n
u

fa
ct

u
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
is

 d
e

si
g

n
, b

y
 Id

e
n

ti
ti

 R
e

so
u

rc
e

s,
 L

T
D

. D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 t
o

 o
r 

u
se

 o
f 

th
is

 s
ig

n
 d

e
si

g
n

 b
y

 a
n

yo
n

e
 o

u
ts

id
e

 o
f 

th
e

 c
u

st
o

m
e

r’
s 

o
rg

a
n

iz
a

ti
o

n
, 

w
it

h
o

u
t 

e
xp

re
ss

e
d

, w
ri

tt
e

n
 a

u
th

o
ri

za
ti

o
n

 b
y

 Id
e

n
ti

ti
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s,

 L
T

D
. i

s 
p

ro
h

ib
it

e
d

.

S
ca

le
:

S
ch

a
u

m
b

u
rg

, I
L

 6
0

1
7

3

1
1

7
1

 T
o

w
e

r 
R

d
.

O
:  

8
4

7
.3

0
1

.0
5

1
0

id
e

a
s@

id
e

n
ti

ti
.n

e
t

F
:  

8
4

7
.3

0
1

.0
5

1
8

L
a

w
re

n
ce

 S
Ic

h
e

r

1
4

4
0

 4
1

st
 A

v
e

n
u

e
, S

u
it

e
 B

, C
a

p
it

o
la

, C
A

 9
5

0
1

0

0
2

/1
9

/2
0

1
3

1
3

0
4

6
6

0
0

8

B
o

b
 C

o
tt

o
n

3
/4

” 
=

 1
2

”
D

e
si

g
n

e
r:

 S
a

ra
h

R
e

v
is

io
n

 A
rt

: J
a

y

F
R

O
N

T
 S

T
O

R
E

 E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 S
ig

n
a

g
e

 =
 1

0
 S

q
F

t

R
e

le
v

a
n

t 
S

ig
n

a
g

e
 C

o
d

e
:

N
T

E
 1

5
” 

C
h

a
ra

ct
e

r 
H

e
ig

h
t

S
ig

n
 C

a
lc

u
la

ti
o

n
:

(H
) 

x 
(L

) 
o

f 
o

v
e

ra
ll

 b
o

xe
d

 d
im

e
n

si
o

n
s

Fo
u

r 
lin

e
 c

o
n

to
u

r 
b

o
x

S
IG

N
 C

O
D

E
 •

S
IG

N
 T

Y
P

E
 •

L
.E

.D
. C

h
a

n
n

e
l L

e
tt

e
rs

e
t

Fl
u

sh
 M

o
u

n
te

d

M
O

U
N

T
IN

G
 •

C
O

L
O

R
 P

A
L

E
T

T
E

 •

B
la

ck
 T

ri
m

 &
 R

e
tu

rn
s

R
e

d
 A

cr
y

lic
 #

 2
7

9
3

W
h

it
e

 A
cr

y
lic

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

R
e

v
is

io
n

 D
a

te
:

R
e

v
. 

D
e

ta
il

s:
12

/1
3/

13
N

ew
 L

og
o

S
1

-1

2
4

 in

8
.3

7
5

 in
1

5
.0

0
 in

(1
 f

t 
- 

3
 in

)

9
6

.5
0

 in

(8
 f

t 
- 

0
 1

/2
 in

)

3
6

0
 in

(3
0

 f
t 

- 
0

 in
)

-57-

Item #: 5.A. 1440 41st Avenue Revised Final Plan.pdf



P
ro

je
ct

 N
o

: 

O
ri

g
. D

ra
ft

:

P
a

g
e

 R
e

v
:

P
ro

j. 
Lo

ca
ti

o
n

: 

P
ro

j. 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r:

S
a

le
s 

R
e

p
:

P R O J E C T

T
h

is
 s

ig
n

 d
e

si
g

n
 is

 e
xc

lu
si

v
e

 p
ro

p
e

rt
y

 o
f I

d
e

n
ti

ti
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s,

 L
T

D
., 

a
n

d
 is

 t
h

e
 r

e
su

lt
 

o
f 

th
e

 o
ri

g
in

a
l a

n
d

 c
re

a
ti

v
e

 w
o

rk
 o

f 
it

’s
 e

m
p

lo
ye

e
s.

 T
h

is
 d

ra
w

in
g

 is
 s

u
b

m
it

te
d

 t
o

 

th
e

 
cu

st
o

m
e

r 
fo

r 
th

e
 

so
le

 
p

u
rp

o
se

 
o

f 
p

u
rc

h
a

se
 

o
f 

th
e

 
d

e
si

g
n

 
o

r 
si

g
n

a
g

e
 

m
a

n
u

fa
ct

u
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
is

 d
e

si
g

n
, b

y
 Id

e
n

ti
ti

 R
e

so
u

rc
e

s,
 L

T
D

. D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 t
o

 o
r 

u
se

 o
f 

th
is

 s
ig

n
 d

e
si

g
n

 b
y

 a
n

yo
n

e
 o

u
ts

id
e

 o
f 

th
e

 c
u

st
o

m
e

r’
s 

o
rg

a
n

iz
a

ti
o

n
, 

w
it

h
o

u
t 

e
xp

re
ss

e
d

, w
ri

tt
e

n
 a

u
th

o
ri

za
ti

o
n

 b
y

 Id
e

n
ti

ti
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s,

 L
T

D
. i

s 
p

ro
h

ib
it

e
d

.

S
ca

le
:

S
ch

a
u

m
b

u
rg

, I
L

 6
0

1
7

3

1
1

7
1

 T
o

w
e

r 
R

d
.

O
:  

8
4

7
.3

0
1

.0
5

1
0

id
e

a
s@

id
e

n
ti

ti
.n

e
t

F
:  

8
4

7
.3

0
1

.0
5

1
8

L
a

w
re

n
ce

 S
Ic

h
e

r

1
4

4
0

 4
1

st
 A

v
e

n
u

e
, S

u
it

e
 B

, C
a

p
it

o
la

, C
A

 9
5

0
1

0

0
2

/1
9

/2
0

1
3

1
3

0
4

6
6

0
0

8

B
o

b
 C

o
tt

o
n

N
T

S
D

e
si

g
n

e
r:

 S
a

ra
h

R
e

v
is

io
n

 A
rt

: J
a

y

S
IG

N
 S

P
E

C
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

 -
 L

E
T

T
E

R
S

E
T

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 S
ig

n
a

g
e

 =
 N

/A

R
e

le
v

a
n

t 
S

ig
n

a
g

e
 C

o
d

e
:

n
o

t 
to

 e
xc

e
e

d
 6

0
%

 o
f 

th
e

 e
le

v
a

ti
o

n
 w

id
th

S
ig

n
 C

a
lc

u
la

ti
o

n
:

(H
) 

x 
(L

) 
o

f 
o

v
e

ra
ll

 b
o

xe
d

 d
im

e
n

si
o

n
s

Fo
u

r 
lin

e
 c

o
n

to
u

r 
b

o
x

S
IG

N
 C

O
D

E
 •

S
IG

N
 T

Y
P

E
 •

L
.E

.D
. C

h
a

n
n

e
l L

e
tt

e
rs

e
t

Fl
u

sh
 M

o
u

n
te

d

M
O

U
N

T
IN

G
 •

C
O

L
O

R
 P

A
L

E
T

T
E

 •

B
la

ck
 T

ri
m

 &
 R

e
tu

rn
s

R
e

d
 A

cr
y

lic
 #

 2
7

9
3

W
h

it
e

 A
cr

y
lic

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
e

v
is

io
n

 D
a

te
:

R
e

v
. 

D
e

ta
il

s:
12

/1
3/

13
N

ew
 L

og
o

S
P

E
C

5
”

*N
o

te
: A

ll
 f

a
st

e
n

e
rs

 t
o

 b
e

 n
o

n
-f

e
rr

o
u

s 
a

n
d

 a
ll

 p
e

n
e

tr
a

ti
o

n
s

sh
a

ll
 b

e
 s

e
a

le
d

 w
a

te
r 

ti
g

h
t

P
o

w
e

r 
S

u
p

p
ly

:

1
2

0
v

 S
ys

te
m

: T
y

p
ic

a
l: 

B
e

h
in

d
 W

a
ll

R
e

tu
rn

s:
 .0

4
0

 B
la

ck
 A

lu
m

in
u

m

B
o

tt
o

m
 t

o
 h

a
v

e
 1

/4
” 

D
ia

m
e

te
r 

W
e

e
p

 H
o

le
s

D
is

co
n

n
e

ct
 S

w
it

ch
 a

d
d

e
d

 t
o

 “
Le

ft
 M

o
st

” 
Le

tt
e

r

(C
o

n
tr

o
ls

 E
n

ti
re

 L
e

tt
e

rs
e

t)

Tr
im

: 1
” 

B
la

ck
 J

e
w

e
lit

e

L
E

D
: W

h
it

e
 Il

lu
m

in
a

ti
o

n
 s

tr
ip

s 
(Z

 t
o

 b
e

 R
e

d
 L

E
D

s)

Fa
ce

: 3
/1

6
” W

h
it

e
 A

cr
y

lic
 (

Z
 t

o
 b

e
 R

e
d

)

B
a

ck
s:

 .0
6

3
 A

lu
m

in
u

m

Fr
o

n
t-

L
it

 L
.E

.D
 C

h
a

n
n

e
l L

e
tt

e
r 

- 
Fl

u
sh

 M
o

u
n

t
T

Y
P

IC
A

L
 -

 S
e

ct
io

n
 D

e
ta

il

B
O
R

A
L

A
S

TO

RE

R

T

I

I

E

R

S

W

L I

R

S

E

T

D

E
D

N
U

M
o

u
n

ti
n

g
: T

y
p

ic
a

l: 
3

/8
” 

A
n

ch
o

r 
B

o
lt

s

Le
tt

e
rs

e
t 

to
 b

e
 s

u
p

p
lie

d
 w

it
h

 a
 m

in
im

u
m

 o
f

5
 f

t 
o

f 
e

le
ct

ri
ca

l r
u

n

-58-

Item #: 5.A. 1440 41st Avenue Revised Final Plan.pdf



 

 

EXHIBIT B 

 

SIGN PROGRAM 
 

 The following represents the criteria for an overall sign program for FOUR STAR CENTER. Any 

installed non-conforming or unapproved sign must be brought to conformance at the non-conforming 

occupant’s expense. 

 

GENERAL CRITERIA 

 

1. General Requirements: 

 a. All signs shall be in conformance with this Exhibit “B”. 

 

 b. One approved sign designating Tenant’s trade name. Said sign shall be constructed of 

individually lighted letters that conform to Four Star Center criteria and Capitola City requirements, to be 

completed and operable within ninety (90) days of occupancy as determined by this Lease. 

 

 c. Tenants on end-cap spaces facing 41st Avenue who expand their premises into contiguous 

adjacent units may be permitted, at Landlord’s sole discretion, to have one additional sign on the 41st 

Avenue side. Such signs shall meet the requirements and specifications set forth herein.  

 

d. Each tenant shall submit or cause to be submitted to the Landlord for approval, before 

fabrication, at least three (3) copies of detail drawings including all lettering and/or graphics. All face 

changes shall also require approval. 

 

 e. All permits for signs and their installation shall be obtained by the occupant or his 

representative at his expense. 

 

 f. Tenant shall be responsible for the fulfillment of all requirements and specifications. 

 

2. Design Requirements: 

 a. Signs shall be permitted only within the areas as designated from time to time by 

Landlord. 

 

 b. The maximum length of sign shall not exceed 60% of a store’s frontage. 

 

 c. Heights of signs shall be as designated from time to time by Landlord, and in no event 

shall any element of the sign be larger than fifteen (15) inches in height. 

 

 d. No signs of any sort shall be permitted on building roof. 

 

 e. Wording of sign shall not include the product sold except as a part of the Tenant’s trade 

name or insignia. 

 

3. General Specifications: 

 a. Painted lettering will not be permitted. 

 

 b. Flashing, moving, or audible signs will not be permitted. 

 

 c. All electrical signs shall bear the UL Label, and their installation must comply with all 

local building and electrical codes. 

-59-

Item #: 5.A. 1440 41st Avenue Proposed MSP Amendment.pdf



 

 

 

 d. No exposed conduit, tubing or raceways will be permitted except with prior written 

permission of Landlord. 

 

 e. No exposed neon lighting shall be used on signs, symbols or decorative elements. 

 

 f. All conductors, transformers and other equipment shall be concealed. 

 

 g. Electrical service to all signs shall be on occupant’s meters and shall be part of 

occupant’s construction and operation cost. 

 

 h. All bolts, fastenings, clips, etc., shall be painted consistent with the surrounding surface. 

 

 i. No sign maker’s label or other identification will be permitted on the exposed surface of 

sign, except those required by local ordinance which later shall be placed in an inconspicuous location. 

 

 j. All penetrations of the building structure required for sign installation shall be neatly 

sealed in a watertight condition. 

 

 k. Sign contractor shall repair any damage to any work caused by his work. Damage to 

structure that is not repaired by the sign contractor shall become the Tenant’s responsibility to correct. 

 

 l. Tenant shall be fully responsible for the operations of occupant’s sign contractor. 

 

 m. The maximum output for sign lamps shall not exceed 800 milliamps. 

 

4. Miscellaneous Requirements: 

 a. Each tenant will be permitted to place upon each entrance of its Premises not more than 

144 square inches of gold leaf or decal application lettering, not to exceed four inches (4”) in height, 

indicating hours of business, emergency telephone number, etc. 

 

 b. Each tenant who has a non-customer door for receiving merchandise may have uniformly 

applied on said door, in location as directed by the project architect, in six inch (6”) high block letters, the 

occupant’s name and address. Where more than one owner uses the same door, each owner’s name and 

address shall be applied. Color of letters will be selected by the project architect. 

 

5. Temporary Signs: 

 a. “Temporary” shall mean an installation which is not permanent, used for a special event, 

and shall not remain in place longer than 30 consecutive calendar days. 

 

 b. Tenant may be permitted to have temporary window signs which do not exceed 15% of 

its total window area. Window signs shall be mounted on the interior face of the glass. 

 

 c. Tenant shall be permitted a temporary banner to advertise a “Grand Opening”. The sign 

shall not exceed 16 square feet and shall be placed above the entrance to the store. 

 

 d. No “A” frame signs shall be permitted under any circumstances. 

 
 
 

s:\charlene\four starr properties\verizon lease\exhibit b sign program 3.14 verizon revised.docx 

-60-

Item #: 5.A. 1440 41st Avenue Proposed MSP Amendment.pdf



 
 

S T A F F   R E P O R T 
 

TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  JULY 17, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 1649 41st Ave   #14-076  APN: 034-151-09 

Sign Permit for new monument sign with LED lettering at the Shell Gas Station, 
located in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District.  
This project is not in the Coastal Zone and does not require a Coastal 
Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Peninsula Petroleum LLC 
Representative: Hillary McClurg, filed 5/21/14 

 
APPLICANTS’ PROPOSAL 
The applicant is proposing to replace three existing signs at the Shell Gas Station located on the 
corner of 41st Avenue and Capitola Road in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District.  
The existing wall signs and monument sign were approved in 2002. The applicant is proposing 
changes to the two wall signs located on the existing canopies and the monument sign on the 
front corner of the property.      
 
DISCUSSION 
The applicant is proposing to update three signs onsite, including: the monument sign at the 
front corner of the property and the two wall signs located on the existing canopies.  The new 
wall signs fit within the existing signs and do not require approval by the Planning Commission.  
The applicant will be replacing the existing “SHELL” lettering on each of the canopies with the 
Shell logo.  The renovations will also update the exterior of the canopies including the addition 
of an internally lit red band around each canopy.  Architectural illumination is not regulated 
within the Capitola sign code.  The applicant is proposing individually lit LED letters on the new 
monument sign which requires approval from the Planning Commission.   
 
Monument Sign 
There is an existing monument sign located on the corner of 41st Avenue and Capitola Road.  
The existing monument sign is approximately 8 feet tall by 12 feet wide for a total of 96 square 
feet.  The internally illuminated shell logo is located on the left side of monument sign.  The right 
side of the sign lists the rating of each type of fuel offered and the per gallon pricing.  The 
description of the fuel (regular, plus, v-power, and diesel) are permanent with individual 
internally-illuminated, off-white lettering within a gray, opaque background. The pricing is 
updated manually with changeable copy numbering.  The changeable copy signs are switched 
out by employees to reflect current pricing of gasoline and diesel.   
 
The applicant is requesting approval of a new monument sign to replace the existing sign in the 
same location.  The new monument sign will be the exact size as the existing sign.  The one 
modification is that the applicant is requesting digital LED lights for the pricing display.  Within 

-61-

Item #: 5.B. 1649 41ST Sign Application Staff Report.pdf



  
 

 
 

the sign code, internal illumination is limited to the use of individually lighted letters with opaque 
or wood background materials, as follows: 
 
§17.57.070.A.7, Monument Sign “The use of wood materials shall be encouraged with 
provisions for indirect lighting permitted.  Internally lit signs shall be limited to the use of 
individually lighted letters with opaque or wood background materials.” 
 
The applicant is requesting that the Planning Commission consider the application of LED digital 
lighting to meet the intent of the required individually lighted letters although not on an opaque 
or wood background material as required.  The digital LED lights will have the appearance of 
individual illumination while creating an easier means to manage price changes automatically.  
Allowing the LED lights will create a digital aesthetic along 41st Avenue.   
 
Staff has concerns for allowing LED lighting on the monument sign.  The code currently does 
not allow for LED lighting and prior to making a decision on one application staff recommends 
that LED signs be considered holistically during the sign code update in the coming year.  
Allowing an exception for one sign would set a precedent premature of the new sign code.  The 
use of digital LED signs in the future may be appropriate along 41st Avenue, but not within other 
areas of Capitola, such as the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) or CV (Central Village) zoning 
districts.  Also, LED signs may be appropriate for gas station monument signs but not 
appropriate within typical shopping center monument signs.  LED imaging is digital and 
therefore has the ability to appear animated and move, which is currently prohibited within the 
sign code.       
 
If the Planning Commission were to deny the application for LED lettering, the applicant would 
be allowed to install updated changeable copy signs, similar to those utilized within the existing 
sign, within an administrative sign permit.  
  
CEQA 
This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California Environmental Quality 
Act. The proposed project involves a monument sign for an existing commercial space. No 
adverse environmental impacts were discovered during project review by either the Community 
Development Department Staff or the Planning Commission. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission deny application #14-076, subject to the 
following findings: 
 
FINDINGS 
A.  The application will not maintain the character and aesthetic integrity of the subject 

property and the surrounding area. 
Community Development Department Staff and the Planning Commission have 
reviewed the monument sign.  The proposed LED lettering is not allowed within the sign 
code and may jeopardize the character and aesthetic integrity of the subject property 
and the surrounding CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District and the surrounding 
area.     

 
B.  The application will not reasonably prevent and reduce the sort of visual blight which 

results when signs are designed without due regard to effects on their surroundings.  

-62-

Item #: 5.B. 1649 41ST Sign Application Staff Report.pdf



  
 

 
 

Community Development Department Staff and the Planning Commission have 
reviewed the project.  The introduction of the proposed LED sign may cause visual blight 
due to LED signs not being allowed within the sign code.   

C.  This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

The proposed project involves signs for an existing commercial space. No adverse 
environmental impacts were discovered during project review by either the Planning 
Department Staff or the Planning Commission. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

A.  Sign Plan 
 
Report Prepared By:  Katie Cattan, AICP  

Senior Planner                    
 
P:\Planning Commission\2014 Meeting Packets\07-17-2014\1649 41st staff report.docx 

-63-

Item #: 5.B. 1649 41ST Sign Application Staff Report.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-64-



-65-

Item #: 5.B. Sign Plan.pdf



-66-

Item #: 5.B. Sign Plan.pdf



S
h

e
ll

 R
V

I 
Ev

o
lu

ti
o

n
 D

e
si

g
n

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s

©
 2

00
9 

Sh
el

l O
il 

Pr
od

uc
ts 

U
S:

 R
VI

 E
vo

lu
tio

n 
D

es
ig

n 
St

an
da

rd
s 

M
an

ua
l /

 W
S 

U
S

2
.1

.9

A
p

p
ro

a
ch

 >
 P

ri
m

e 
Si

g
ns

 >
 M

o
nu

m
en

t S
ig

n

2X 1X1X 1X

St
re

et
 S

id
e

C
-S

to
re

 S
id

e

Pl
us

Di
es
el

4X 4X 1X

2X

4
' x

 8
' o

r 
6

' x
 1

2
' M

o
n

u
m

en
t

5
'-

4
" 

x
 8

' M
o

n
u

m
en

t

St
re

et
 S

id
e

C
-S

to
re

 S
id

e

Pl
us

Di
es
el

12
7m

m
(5

")
10

2m
m

(4
")

2X

Di
es
el

12
7m

m
(5

")

X X

Si
ng

le
 p

an
el

 p
ro

du
ct

 n
am

e 
po

sit
io

ni
ng

. 
C

ap
 h

ei
gh

t i
s 

89
m

m
 (3

.5
")

.

A
 L

im
it

ed
 V

a
ri

a
ti

o
n

M
on

um
en

t s
ig

ns
 a

re
 u

tili
ze

d 
on

ly
 w

he
re

 
re

gu
la

to
ry

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts 

so
 re

str
ic

t s
ig

na
ge

 
th

at
 th

ey
 p

re
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 th

e 
sta

nd
ar

d 
Pr

im
e 

Si
gn

. B
ec

au
se

 o
f t

hi
s 

ha
rd

sh
ip

, t
he

 
co

nfi
gu

ra
tio

ns
 o

f s
ig

ns
 in

 a
 m

on
um

en
t f

or
m

at
 

m
ay

 v
ar

y 
fro

m
 s

om
e 

RV
I E

vo
lu

tio
n 

an
d

br
an

di
ng

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts.

W
he

re
 a

 m
on

um
en

t s
ig

n 
is 

us
ed

, i
t s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
pl

ac
ed

 p
er

pe
nd

ic
ul

ar
 to

 th
e 

str
ee

t w
ith

 th
e 

en
d 

be
ar

in
g 

th
e 

Sh
el

l P
ec

te
n 

Pa
ne

l c
lo

se
st 

to
 tr

af
fic

.

Le
g

a
cy

 M
o

nu
m

en
t S

ig
ns

Le
ga

cy
 m

on
um

en
t s

ig
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 u

pd
at

ed
 

by
 in

sta
llin

g 
ne

w
 R

VI
 E

vo
lu

tio
n 

co
m

pl
ia

nt
 1

X,
 

2X
 a

nd
 4

X 
sig

n 
pa

ne
ls 

as
 s

ho
w

n 
at

 ri
gh

t. 
Th

e 
pr

ef
er

en
ce

 fo
r t

he
 p

ric
e 

pa
ne

l i
s 

di
gi

ta
l L

ED
.

In
 a

ny
 c

as
e,

 th
e 

Pe
ct

en
 P

an
el

 s
ho

ul
d 

al
w

ay
s 

be
 p

os
itio

ne
d 

at
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

sig
n 

cl
os

es
t 

to
 tr

af
fic

.

Th
e 

ex
te

rio
r s

id
es

 a
nd

to
p 

of
 th

e 
m

on
um

en
t s

ig
n

ca
bi

ne
t a

re
 to

 b
e 

pa
in

te
d

Sh
el

l S
ilv

er
.

-67-

Item #: 5.B. Sign Plan.pdf



S
h

e
ll

 R
V

I 
Ev

o
lu

ti
o

n
 D

e
si

g
n

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s

©
 2

00
9 

Sh
el

l O
il 

Pr
od

uc
ts 

U
S:

 R
VI

 E
vo

lu
tio

n 
D

es
ig

n 
St

an
da

rd
s 

M
an

ua
l /

 W
S 

U
S

2
.1

.1
4

A
p

p
ro

a
ch

 >
 P

ri
m

e 
Si

g
ns

 >
 L

ED
 a

nd
 M

a
nu

a
l P

ri
ci

ng
 S

p
ec

ifi
ca

ti
o

ns

Fo
nt

s

A
ll 

fu
el

 g
ra

de
 n

am
es

 a
re

 to
 b

e 
sh

ow
n 

in
Fu

tu
ra

 B
ol

d 
C

on
de

ns
ed

. P
ric

e 
nu

m
er

al
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
as

 c
lo

se
 to

 F
ut

ur
a 

Bo
ld

 
C

on
de

ns
ed

 a
s 

co
st 

al
lo

w
s. 

Th
e 

LE
D

nu
m

er
al

s 
illu

str
at

ed
 o

n 
th

is 
pa

ge
 a

re
 th

e
ap

pr
ov

ed
, s

im
pl

ifi
ed

 (m
ul

ti-s
eg

m
en

t) 
ve

rs
io

n.

Co
lo

rs

D
ig

it
a

l L
ED

 P
C

U
s:

 P
ric

in
g 

fo
r d

ig
ita

l P
ric

e 
C

on
tro

l U
ni

ts 
(P

C
U

s)
 is

 re
d 

LE
D

s 
on

 a
 b

la
ck

 
ba

ck
gr

ou
nd

 fo
r a

ll 
fu

el
 g

ra
de

s 
ex

ce
pt

 d
ie

se
l. 

D
ie

se
l f

ue
l p

ric
e 

nu
m

er
al

s 
ar

e 
gr

ee
n 

LE
D

on
 a

 b
la

ck
 b

ac
kg

ro
un

d 
as

 s
ho

w
n.

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
LE

D
 fo

nt
 s

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

 h
av

e
be

en
 e

sta
bl

ish
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
ac

cu
ra

te
 c

ol
or

 
m

at
ch

in
g,

 a
nd

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 o

bt
ai

ne
d 

fro
m

ap
pr

ov
ed

 s
up

pl
ie

rs
.

M
a

n
u

a
l P

C
U

s 
us

in
g 

M
ag

na
 D

ig
its

 o
r 

ac
ry

lic
 fo

nt
s 

w
ill 

di
sp

la
y 

pr
ic

e 
nu

m
er

al
s 

in
 

Sh
el

l R
ed

 o
n 

a 
no

n-
illu

m
in

at
ed

 w
hi

te
 b

ac
k-

gr
ou

nd
 fo

r a
ll 

fu
el

 g
ra

de
s. 

Ba
ck

 il
lu

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 p
ric

e 
di

gi
ts 

is 
re

str
ic

te
d 

by
 2

20
m

m
 (8

.6
6"

) 
fro

m
 th

e 
le

ft-
 a

nd
 ri

gh
t-h

an
d 

sid
es

 a
s 

sh
ow

n.

B
o

th
 s

y
st

em
s 

ba
ck

-ill
um

in
at

e 
th

e 
fu

el
 

gr
ad

e 
na

m
es

 in
 S

he
ll 

Re
d 

on
 a

 n
on

-ill
um

in
at

-
ed

 w
hi

te
 b

ac
kg

ro
un

d.
 T

he
 b

ac
k 

illu
m

in
at

io
n 

to
 th

e 
fu

el
 g

ra
de

s 
is 

re
str

ic
te

d 
by

 2
20

m
m

 
(8

.6
6"

) f
ro

m
 th

e 
le

ft-
 a

nd
 ri

gh
t-h

an
d 

sid
es

as
 s

ho
w

n.

LE
D

 N
u

m
er

a
ls

: A
pp

ro
ve

d,
 s

im
pl

ifi
ed

 v
er

sio
n

D
o

u
b

le
12

00
m

m
(4

7.
25

")

D
o

u
b

le
 P

a
n

el
/D

o
u

b
le

-P
ri

ce
 P

C
U

(2
 p

ric
e 

di
sp

la
ys

 in
 o

ne
 d

ou
bl

e 
pa

ne
l)

D
ig

it
a

l L
ED

 P
CU

s

61
0m

m
(2

4"
)

D
o

u
b

le
 P

a
n

el
 P

C
U

Si
n

g
le

 P
a

n
el

 P
C

U

Si
n

g
le

60
0m

m
(2

3.
62

")

D
o

u
b

le
12

00
m

m
(4

7.
25

")

D
o

u
b

le
12

00
m

m
(4

7.
25

")

D
o

u
b

le
 P

a
n

el
/D

o
u

b
le

-P
ri

ce
 P

C
U

(2
 p

ric
e 

di
sp

la
ys

 in
 o

ne
 d

ou
bl

e 
pa

ne
l)

M
a

nu
a

l P
CU

s

61
0m

m
(2

4"
)

D
o

u
b

le
 P

a
n

el
 P

C
U

Si
n

g
le

 P
a

n
el

 P
C

U

Si
n

g
le

60
0m

m
(2

3.
62

")

D
o

u
b

le
12

00
m

m
(4

7.
25

")

22
0m

m
(8

.6
6"

)
22

0m
m

(8
.6

6"
)

22
0m

m
(8

.6
6"

)
22

0m
m

(8
.6

6"
)

30
5m

m
(1

2"
)

x 
82

m
m

30
5m

m
(1

2"
)

x 
82

m
m

-68-

Item #: 5.B. Sign Plan.pdf



-69-

Item #: 5.B. Sign Plan.pdf



-70-

Item #: 5.B. Sign Plan.pdf



-71-

Item #: 5.B. Sign Plan.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-72-


	AGENDA
	1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS
	A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda
	B. Public Comments
	C. Commission Comments
	D. Staff Comments

	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	A. Approval of June 5, 2014 Planning Commission draft minutes
	[6-5-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf]


	4. CONSENT CALENDAR
	A. 528 Capitola Avenue #14-094 APN: 035-094-29
	[528 Capitola Avenue 14-094.pdf]
	[528 Capitola Ave Sign Plan.pdf]
	Sign Permit for a new wall sign to be located at the Dignity Health Medical Group located at 528 Capitola Avenue on a parcel that is located within two zoning districts including CN (Commercial Neighborhood) and R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District. This project is in the Coastal Zone, but does not require a Coastal Development Permit.Environmental Determination: Categorical ExemptionProperty Owner: Harold LaFontRepresentative: Bob Deschamps (Pro Signs Inc.), filed: 6/17/14

	B. 2000 Wharf Road and Parcel Adjacent to 809 Bay Avenue #14-096 APNs: 035-021-42; 035-371-01; and 035-371-02
	[Soquel Creek Coastal Permit Staff Report.pdf]
	[Soquel Creek Pump Station Plans.pdf]
	[Soquel Creek Pump Station Coastal Findings.pdf]
	Coastal Development Permit application and Tree Removal Permit for the Soquel Pump Station Force Main Replacement project. The project runs on either side of and under Soquel Creek from property adjacent to Peery Park through the Rispin property to Clares Street. This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit, which is appealable to the California Coastal Commission after all possible appeals are exhausted through the City.Environmental Determination: Mitigated Negative DeclarationApplicant: Santa Cruz County Sanitation DistrictProperty Owners: Santa Cruz County Sanitation District and City of CapitolaRepresentative: Rachel Lather, filed: 06/17/14


	5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
	A. 1440 41st Avenue #14-075 APN: 0034-111-50
	[1440 41st Avenue MSP Amendment.pdf]
	[1440 41st Avenue Original Plan.pdf]
	[1440 41st Avenue Revised Final Plan.pdf]
	[1440 41st Avenue Proposed MSP Amendment.pdf]
	Amendment to Master Sign Program (Four Starr Center) to allow an additional Verizon sign on the building located at 1440 41st Avenue in the CC (Community Commercial) zoning district. This project is in the Coastal Zone, but does not require a Coastal Development Permit.Environmental Determination: Categorical ExemptionProperty Owner: Richard StarrRepresentative: Chris Merrell (Northwest Signs), filed: 5/20/14

	B. 1649 41st Avenue #14-076 APN: 304-151-09
	[1649 41ST Sign Application Staff Report.pdf]
	[Sign Plan.pdf]
	Sign Permit for new monument sign with LED lettering on existing canopies and the monument sign at the Shell Gas Station, located in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District. This project is not in the Coastal Zone and does not require a Coastal Development Permit.Environmental Determination: Categorical ExemptionProperty Owner: Peninsula Petroleum LLCRepresentative: Hillary McClurg, filed 5/21/14


	6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT
	7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS
	8. ADJOURNMENT

